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Dear Investor,

Blackstone Private Equity Strategies Fund (“BXPE”) and its new approach to investing in private equity 
delivered strong results in year one. BXPE deployed significant capital into Blackstone’s high-conviction 
themes and flagship private equity investments, offering individual investors a singular private equity 
solution from the world’s largest private equity platform.1

We believe that the strong foundation built in its first year positions BXPE for continued potential growth as 
technological advancements and shifting consumer preferences transform the economic environment.

Performance Highlights

Portfolio Highlights6

16.2%
ITD total net returns  
Class I-A4,5

12
consecutive months of 
positive performance 5

BXPE’s 2024 Accomplishments

Redefining private equity for individual investors
For over a decade, Blackstone has been at the forefront of product 
innovation, centered on individual investors.2 We design institutional-
quality offerings while simplifying the investor experience, and BXPE is 
no exception.3 We launched BXPE to provide eligible individual investors 
greater access to Blackstone’s leading private equity platform.1 BXPE aims 
to enable constant compounding of invested capital in a diverse portfolio 
of performing private equity investments — historically a long-standing 
challenge for individuals in traditional investment structures. We believe 
that our product, brand, client service and results resonated with thousands 
of investors who entrusted us with their capital in year one.

Strong performance
BXPE Feeder SICAV’s Class I-A shares generated a strong total net 16.2% 
return in its first year.4,5 Importantly, BXPE Feeder SICAV’s performance 
helped mitigate the conventional J-curve, delivered one-tenth the volatility 
of public markets and provided positive returns every month.7 The portfolio 
is young, with an average investment age of less than six months, which 
we believe leaves significant room for potential growth through active 
management and value creation.

Exposure to Blackstone’s highest-conviction themes
BXPE invests in themes that Blackstone believes are powering the industries 
of the future. Seventy percent of the BXPE Fund Program’s portfolio is 
invested behind Blackstone’s highest-conviction themes, including artificial 
intelligence, power demand, digitization, experiences and franchisors. The 
digitization of the economy is driving unprecedented demand for compute, 
digital infrastructure and power. Further, the modern consumer supports 
shifting trends towards e-commerce, a preference for experiences and an 
emphasis on high-quality, premium brands.

75+
private equity investments

~$2.2B
invested & committed

70%
of BXPE Fund Program’s portfolio 
is invested in Blackstone’s 
high-conviction themes

Past performance does not predict future returns. 
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Christopher James 
Chairperson of the Board

Viral Patel 
Chief Executive Officer

Differentiated sourcing and deployment capabilities 
We believe that our ability to deploy capital at scale is a true competitive advantage that sets BXPE apart. Since launching 
in 2024, BXPE has deployed over ~$2.2 billion to 75+ private equity investments, making BXPE one of the largest 
global private equity funds in its category.6,8 Blackstone’s significant scale and reach allowed us to evaluate over 3,000 
investment opportunities across the Private Equity Platform, from which only 3% were selected for investment. We 
partnered with management teams and founders and pursued public-to-private transactions that we believe offered 
compelling relative value. BXPE contributed to a number of $5 billion+ transactions, including Adevinta, AirTrunk, 
Jersey Mike’s and Smartsheet.9

We leveraged Blackstone’s 15+ private equity strategies, dynamically deploying early into secondaries and opportunistic 
transactions and then shifting heavily into control equity investments. BXPE focused on what we believe are high-quality 
businesses, such as fast-growing franchisors with strong brands, attractive free cash flow and minimal capital expenditures.

In a higher cost-of-capital market environment in 2024, Blackstone’s private equity business actively sought to lean in and 
invest before the all-clear sign, increasing deployment 70% vs. the previous year.10 In contrast, we believe the industry sat 
back and was slower to react to market dynamics, with overall deployment up only 23%.11

Looking ahead
We believe that private equity investing uniquely captures a diverse range of investment strategies from emerging growth 
business to mature companies, enabling investors to play investment themes across the value chain, while offering an 
attractive complement to public market exposure. In our view, BXPE is the ideal perpetual private equity solution. Through 
its thoughtful portfolio construction, differentiated sourcing and thematic approach, we believe BXPE offers eligible 
investors a diversified private equity solution with the ability to compound capital and help generate long-term wealth. 

One year in, we are excited about the potential opportunities ahead for BXPE. Thank you for choosing us to be your 
partner and for your trust and support.
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Blackstone Private Equity Strategies Fund (BXPE)  
First Year in Review5,6,12

(Represents BXPE Feeder SICAV Class I-A Shares)

January: +1.8% YTD

BXPE Fund Program raised ~$1.3B, the largest 
perpetual launch in history, as we believe 
Blackstone’s differentiated scale and direct, 
deal-level access were well received by 
the market.13

February: +2.4% YTD

Completed the take-private of Rover, the 
world’s leading digital pet marketplace, 
connecting pet owners to pet care providers.14

June: +7.2% YTD

Closed on our second investment in 
CoreWeave, a key developer of AI 
infrastructure, for a total of $10B, in one 
of the largest-ever private financings.17

July: +7.7% YTD

Financed €1.5B to support the take-private 
of L’Occitane, a prominent beauty and 
skincare platform with brands such as 
Sol de Janeiro.

November: +14.6% YTD

Agreed to acquire Jersey Mike’s, a founder-
owned submarine sandwich restaurant 
franchisor, for ~$8B. 

December: +16.2% YTD

First year of operations generated 
strong returns in line with our  
long-term expectations.

March: +3.6% YTD

Committed to a partnership with Moderna, 
which provided diversified exposure to all 
five of Blackstone’s major PE businesses — 
Growth, Corporate PE, Opportunistic, 
Secondaries, and Life Sciences.15

May: +5.2% YTD

Completed the ~€14B take-private of 
Adevinta, the world’s largest classifieds 
business, receiving 2.5 billion monthly visits.16

August: +10.4% YTD

Returned +2.5% in August, its best month of 
the year, on the back of strong deployment, 
with ~$500M in fundings between May 
and August.

September: +11.7% YTD

Agreed to terms on the take-private of 
Smartsheet, a premier enterprise work 
management software provider serving 
over 85% of the Fortune 500.

Past performance does not predict future returns. 
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$1.2B
Net Asset Value

75+
private equity investments

$2.2B
invested & committed

70%
invested in high-
conviction themes

Portfolio Snapshot 

(As of 31 December 2024)

Sector Breakdown

(% of Fair Value)19,i

Strategy Breakdown

(% of Fair Value)18,i

Corporate
75%

Opportunistic
16%

Growth
6%

Secondaries
3%

Media & Entertainment
16%

Infrastructure
15%

Business Services
14%Financial Services

12%

Software
11%

Consumer
8%

Industrials
8%

Otherii

16%

North America
54%

EMEA
33%

APAC
13%

Private Equity Investments
94%

Debt & Other Securities
6%

Regional Breakdown

(% of Fair Value)20,i

Portfolio Breakdown

(% of Fair Value)21,i

Past performance does not predict future returns. There can be no assurance that any Blackstone fund or investment will achieve its 
objectives or avoid substantial losses. Currency fluctuations which may increase or decrease as a result of changes in exchange rates.  
i. “% of Fair Value” represents BXPE’s sum of Investments at Fair Value and Affiliated Investee Funds (exclusive of bank loans, and interests in 

collateralized loan obligations (“CLOs”)), with additional exclusions specified in the corresponding footnotes.  
ii. Other is comprised of Healthcare 7%, Technology & Services 6%, Specialty Finance 3% and Energy 1%.

Portfolio Overview
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Performance Summary
Total Returns (% Net of Fees)4,5

Net Asset Value (NAV) Per Share22

Share Class Inception Datei Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
YTD /  

ITD

Class I-A 02-Jan-24 1.8% 0.6% 1.2% 0.9% 0.7% 1.9% 0.5% 2.5% 1.2% 0.9% 1.7% 1.4% 16.2%

Class I-D 01-Feb-24 - 0.6% 1.2% 0.9% 0.7% 1.9% 0.5% 2.5% 1.2% 0.9% 1.7% 1.4% 14.2%

Class A-A 01-Feb-24 - 0.6% 1.1% 0.8% 0.6% 1.8% 0.4% 2.5%  1.1%  0.8% 1.6% 1.3% 13.3%

Class A-D 01-Feb-24 - 0.6% 1.1% 0.8% 0.6% 1.8% 0.4% 2.5% 1.1% 0.8% 1.6% 1.3% 13.3%

Class I-A EUR 02-Dec-24 - - - - - - - - - - - 3.6% 3.6%

Class A-A EUR 02-Dec-24 - - - - - - - - - - - 3.5% 3.5%

Share Class Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Class I-A $25.44 $25.61 $25.91 $26.13 $26.31 $26.81 $26.93 $27.61 $27.93 $28.18 $28.66 $29.06    

Class I-D - $25.16 $25.46 $25.68 $25.85 $26.34 $26.46 $27.13 $27.44 $27.69 $28.16 $28.55 

Class A-A - $25.14 $25.42 $25.62 $25.77 $26.25 $26.35 $27.00 $27.29 $27.51 $27.96 $28.33

Class A-D - $25.14 $25.42 $25.62 $25.77 $26.25 $26.35 $27.00 $27.29 $27.51 $27.96 $28.33

Class I-A EUR - - - - - - - - - - - €25.89

Class A-A EUR - - - - - - - - - - - €25.88

Board Membersii

Katia Panichi
Director 
Non-affiliated

Kim Percy
Director 
Affiliated

Claire Gerault
Director 
Affiliated

Christopher 
James
Director 
Affiliated 

Cornelis (“Kees”) 
Hage
Director 
Non-affiliated

Past performance does not predict future returns. This product is subject to the risk of capital loss. There can be no assurance that BXPE 
will be able to implement its investment strategy, achieve its objectives or avoid substantial losses. Fees are paid out by BXPE, which will 
impact the overall return of BXPE. BXPE’s charges will be incurred in USD meaning that payments may increase or decrease as a result of 
currency exchange fluctuations.  |  i. Performance is shown from the share class inception date (being the date on which the share class has 
accepted third-party capital). Past performance of share classes with less than 12 months of performance data is to be read as supplemental 
to the performance of the fund.  |  ii. Qasim Abbas resigned as Director on 17 September 2024 and Kim Percy was appointed as Director.
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Notes 

End Notes 

1. Private Equity International, as of June 2024, based on capital 
raised between 1 January 2019 and 31 December 2023. 

2. Blackstone data as of 31 March 2024. Market data sourced from 
public filings and fund websites, as of 31 March 2024, and is 
latest available for the peer set. Based on Blackstone’s analysis 
of publicly available data of the total net asset value (NAV) of 
alternative investment firms that offer solutions for individual 
(non-institutional) investors to invest in private equity, real estate, 
infrastructure, and private credit through U.S.-domiciled semi-
liquid, perpetual private market funds (including non-traded 
REITs and non-traded BDCs). Blackstone’s analysis compares the 
total NAV as of 31 March 2024 for Blackstone’s non-traded REIT, 
non-traded BDC products, and private equity vehicle for individual 
investors, to the total NAV as of 31 March 2024 of comparable 
products offered by alternative investment firms. This selection 
of alternative investment firms for comparison may not be 
representative of all in the category or sector. Private placement 
REIT and BDC products have been excluded from the dataset.

3. “Institutional quality” refers to the types of investments that 
have the characteristics, such as size and attributes, to merit 
attention from institutional investors. Individual investors should 
be aware that institutional investors generally make investments 
on different terms from individual investors.

4. On 2 January 2024, BXPE announced its first close, marking the 
inception of the fund. Performance varies by share class. Returns 
shown reflect the percent change in the NAV per share from 
the beginning of the applicable period, plus the amount of any 
distribution per share declared in the period. Returns shown are 
reflective of each share class and not of an individual investor. 
Returns for periods of less than one year are not annualized. 
Return information is not a measure used under International 
Financial Reporting Standards “IFRS”. All returns shown are 
derived from unaudited financial information, and are net of all 
BXPE expenses, including general and administrative expenses, 
transaction-related expenses, management fees, performance 
participation allocation, and share class-specific fees. The returns 
have been prepared using unaudited data and valuations of the 
underlying investments in BXPE’s portfolio, which are estimates 
of fair value and form the basis for BXPE’s NAV. Valuations based 

upon unaudited reports from the underlying investments may 
be subject to later adjustments, may not correspond to realized 
value and may not accurately reflect the price at which assets 
could be liquidated. As return information is calculated based 
on NAV, return information presented will be impacted should 
the assumptions on which NAV was determined prove to be 
incorrect. See “Additional Detail on Performance Methodology” 
for further information on BXPE’s determination of NAV. Fund 
returns exclude the impact of early repurchase deductions on the 
repurchase of shares that have been outstanding for less than 
two years on individual investors.

5. Represents BXPE Class I-A shares as of 31 December 2024. 
Performance is shown from the share class inception date 
(being the date on which the share class has accepted third-
party capital). The inception dates for BXPE share classes are as 
follows: Class I-A on 2 January 2024; Class I-D, A-A, and A-D on 
1 February 2024; and Class I-A EUR and A-A EUR on 2 December 
2024. Performance varies by share class. Returns shown reflect 
the percent change in the NAV per share from the beginning of 
the applicable period, plus the amount of any distribution per 
share declared in the period. Returns for periods of less than 
one year are not annualized. Inception to date (“ITD”) total net 
returns for the other share classes were as follows: Class I-A 
shares (16.2%), Class I-D shares (14.2%), Class A-A shares (13.3%), 
Class A-D shares (13.3%). Class I-A EUR   (3.6%), Class A-A EUR 
shares (3.5%).  Past performance of share classes with less than 12 
months of performance data is to be read as supplemental to the 
performance of the fund.

6. Includes investments and future commitments to acquire 
investments as of 29 January 2025. There can be no assurance 
that pending or future transactions, including closing BXPE’s 
remaining commitments, will occur as expected or at all. 

7. Volatility based on Blackstone analysis as of 31 December  2024, 
and compares the standard deviation of BXPE’s first year 
returns against that of select public indices (MSCI ACWI, Russell 
2000). BXPE is not in any way managed by reference to the Index. 
BXPE’s investments and Private Equity assets are expected to 
face risks different than those faced by Public Equities, including 
significantly less liquidity, as Private Equity assets generally do not 

Financial information is approximate and as of 31 December 2024, 
unless otherwise indicated, and is latest available. 

Represents Blackstone’s view of the current market environment 
as of the date of these materials only, which is subject to change.

Certain information contained in these materials discusses 
general market activity, industry or sector trends, or other broad-
based economic, market or political conditions and should not 

be construed as research or investment advice. Investors should 
consult their own legal, accounting and tax advisers to make an 
independent determination of the suitability and consequences of 
an investment.

For a more detailed description of BXPE’s investment guidelines 
and risk factors, please refer to BXPE’s Prospectus. See “Important 
Disclosure Information” including “Case Studies,” “Opinions,” and 
“Trends.”  
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have liquid markets and carry a greater risk of default and related 
risk of loss of principal. Additionally, investments in private equity 
are speculative and often include a higher degree of risk. 

8. Blackstone analysis of latest publicly available data of the total net 
asset value (NAV) of comparable products offered by alternative 
investment firms, this selection of alternative perpetual private 
equity vehicles for comparison may not be representative of all in 
the category or sector.  

9. The investment examples presented herein are provided for 
illustrative purposes only and may not be representative of all 
investments of a given type or of all investments in BXPE’s portfolio, 
and there is no assurance that Blackstone or BXPE will make 
comparable investments in the future. The  investment examples 
were selected via an objective, non-performance based standard 
of showing invested and committed deals in the last 12 months 
that we believe illustrate BXPE’s high-conviction themes. They 
represent Blackstone’s view of the current market environment as 
of the date of these materials only, which are subject to change.

10. Represents capital deployed across Blackstone’s private equity 
business, spanning across Corporate Private Equity, Tactical 
Opportunities, Blackstone Growth, Strategic Partners, Life 
Sciences, and Infrastructure. Capital deployment is subject to 
many factors, including (but not limited to) macroeconomic and 
financial market conditions, fund strategy, fund structure, and the 
availability and cost. Past events and trends do not imply, predict 
or guarantee, and are not necessarily indicative of, future events or 
results, and the past activities of investment vehicles managed or 
sponsored by Blackstone provide no assurance of future success.

11. From 2023 to 2024. Pitchbook as of 31 December 2024.

12. These investments were made alongside other Blackstone funds.

13. Based on Blackstone’s analysis of publicly available data of U.S.-
domiciled semi-liquid, perpetual private market funds (including 
non-traded REITs and non-traded BDCs) that invest in private 
equity, real estate, infrastructure, and private credit and are 
focused on individual (non-institutional) investors. Blackstone’s 
analysis compares BXPE’s U.S.’s first close to the publicly reported 
fundraising data regarding escrow break and initial net asset value 
figures following acceptance of third-party capital for those active 
private markets funds that had at least $750 million in NAV as of 
30 September 2023. This selection of private market funds for 
comparison may not be representative of all funds in the category 
or sector. Note this analysis does not include 1031 real estate 
exchange programs. BXPE’s investors are primarily individual (non-
institutional) investors and to a lesser extent, certain institutional 
investors such as family offices. 

14. Rover Q3 2023 Earnings Release.

15. There is no generally accepted definition of the following strategy 
classifications and the use of different criteria in selecting 
investments could result in materially different classifications from 

those shown herein. All determinations are made by Blackstone 
in its sole discretion. Investments are classified as Corporate PE 
if they are: (i) minority or majority common equity investments 
in Operating Companies; or (ii) equity-linked securities (e.g., 
warrants, preferred convertibles) with uncapped upside (e.g., 
where the common equity component is a meaningful percentage 
of the investment amount or the returns from the equity-
linked component account for a meaningful percentage of the 
underwritten returns). Investments are classified as Opportunistic 
if they are: (i) preferred equity with capped upside; (ii) corporate 
debt with equity-like returns (based on prevailing market 
conditions at the time of underwriting) but capped upside; (iii) 
structured investments in non-Operating Companies (e.g., forward 
flow, asset backed, MSRs, royalties, loan or credit pools); or (iv) 
collateralized debt with first loss equity exposure. Investments 
are classified as Growth if they are: minority or majority common 
equity investments in operating companies with a meaningful 
amount of top-line growth in the following sectors: enterprise 
solutions, consumer tech, consumer, healthcare, financial 
services, and life sciences. The financing of life sciences products 
in late-stage development, and any equity investments in life 
sciences companies, are also classified as Growth investments. 
Investments are classified as Secondaries if they are: (i) acquisition 
of limited partner interests or (ii) passive equity co-investments 
sourced by Blackstone Strategic Partners. “There is no generally 
accepted definition of the following strategy classifications 
and the use of different criteria in selecting investments could 
result in materially different classifications from those shown 
herein. All determinations are made by Blackstone in its sole 
discretion. Investments are classified as Corporate PE if they are: 
(i) minority or majority common equity investments in Operating 
Companies; or (ii) equity-linked securities (e.g., warrants, preferred 
convertibles) with uncapped upside (e.g., where the common 
equity component is a meaningful percentage of the investment 
amount or the returns from the equity-linked component account 
for a meaningful percentage of the underwritten returns). 
Investments are classified as Opportunistic if they are: (i) preferred 
equity with capped upside; (ii) corporate debt with equity-like 
returns (based on prevailing market conditions at the time of 
underwriting) but capped upside; (iii) structured investments in 
non-Operating Companies (e.g., forward flow, asset backed, MSRs, 
royalties, loan or credit pools); or (iv) collateralized debt with first 
loss equity exposure. Investments are classified as Growth if they 
are: minority or majority common equity investments in operating 
companies with a meaningful amount of top-line growth in the 
following sectors: enterprise solutions, consumer tech, consumer, 
healthcare, financial services, and life sciences. The financing of 
life sciences products in late-stage development, and any equity 
investments in life sciences companies, are also classified as 
Growth investments. Investments are classified as Secondaries if 
they are: (i) acquisition of limited partner interests or (ii) passive 
equity co-investments sourced by Blackstone Strategic Partners.

End Notes (cont'd)
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End Notes (cont'd)

16. Adevinta is the world’s largest online classifieds company 
(excluding China) based on revenues generated from online 
classifieds listings and advertisements, operating digital 
marketplaces in 10 countries.

17. PR Newswire as of 11 October 2024. 

18. “Strategy Breakdown” weighting is measured as the asset value 
of each of Blackstone’s underlying business strategies (Corporate, 
Opportunistic, Growth and Secondaries) divided by the asset value 
of BXPE’s investments, excluding Debt & Other Securities. 

19. “Sector Breakdown” weighting is measured as the asset value 
of each sector category divided by the asset value of BXPE’s 
investments, excluding Debt & Other Securities. Totals may not 
sum due to rounding. Sector classifications are based on BXPE’s 
internal review and have been qualified to meaningfully distinguish 
among various investment types and may not be representative of 

all investments in a given sector. All determinations are made by 
BXPE in its sole discretion. Totals may not sum due to rounding. 
Excludes diversified secondaries portfolios.

20. “Regional Breakdown” weighting is measured as the asset value 
of each region category divided by the asset value of BXPE’s 
investments, excluding Debt & Other Securities. Region based on 
where each investment has its principal place of business. Excludes 
diversified secondaries portfolios.

21. “Portfolio Breakdown” is calculated as the value of each asset type 
divided by the asset value of all BXPE investments.

22. Select share classes may have a higher initial purchase price, leading 
to a different NAV per share for these classes. Such variations in 
initial purchase price and NAV per share do not affect the returns 
for investors within these classes.
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Glossary

The following are explanations of terms you may come across in this material. These definitions are not exhaustive and are 
intended as a guide only. Please refer to the Prospectus and Key Information Document (KID) for further details.

Buyout / control equity The acquisition of a controlling interest in a company. Also known as acquisition

Compounding returns Represents the cumulative effect that a series of gains or losses has on an amount of 
capital over time

Fair Value IFRS 13 defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid 
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the 
measurement date (an exit price)

Growth The acquisition of a company with a high growth trajectory

Inception to Date (“ITD”) 
Total Net Return

The annualized Total Net Return of BXPE since the date on which it first accepted 
subscriptions and commenced operations

J-Curve Describes the typical cash flow pattern of a closed-end fund, where investors initially see 
negative returns (due to the fund's investment expenses and initial investments) before 
experiencing increasingly positive returns as the fund's assets mature and are liquidated 

Net Asset Value “NAV” Net Asset Value (NAV) represents the value of the Fund’s assets, minus the Fund’s 
liabilities as well as expenses attributable to certain share classes, such as servicing 
fees, in all cases as described in the Prospectus and determined in accordance with the 
Valuation Policy

Opportunistic Investments arising from market dislocations

Perpetual Funds An evergreen, open-ended fund which manages its capital and operates its investment 
strategy on an ongoing basis

Public-to-Private /  
Take Private

Refers to a transaction in which a private buyer acquires the company's shares and 
removes them from public stock exchange

Secondaries Refers to a transaction in which a General Partner acquires an existing interest from 
another sponsor

Total Net Return The aggregated distributions plus change in NAV of BXPE over a period, net of all 
applicable fees and expenses

Year to Date (“YTD”) Total 
Net Return

The Total Net Return of BXPE since the beginning of the calendar year
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Key Risk Factors 

Under the packaged retail and insurance-based investment products 
(PRIIPs) Regulation, we have classified this product as 4 out of 7, 
which is a medium risk class. This rates the potential losses from future 
performance at a medium-high level, and poor market conditions could 
impact our capacity to pay you. There is no specific recommended 
holding period for the product. The actual risk can vary significantly, and 
you may get back less. You may not be able to sell your product easily 
or you may have to sell at a price that significantly impacts how much 
you get back. The summary risk indicator is a guide to the level of risk of 
this product compared to other products. It shows how likely it is that 
the product will lose money because of movements in the markets or 
because we are not able to pay you. Complete information on the risks of 
investing in BXPE are set out in the Prospectus.

BXPE is an investment program designed to offer eligible individual investors 
access to Blackstone’s private equity platform (the “PE Platform”). BXPE will 
seek to meet its investment objectives by investing primarily in privately 
negotiated, equity-oriented investments leveraging the talent and investment 
capabilities of Blackstone’s PE Platform to create an attractive portfolio of 
alternative investments diversified across geographies and sectors. Investing 
in our Shares involves a high degree of risk. If we are unable to effectively 
manage the impact of these risks, we may not meet our investment objectives 
and, therefore, you should purchase our Shares only if you can afford a 
complete loss of your investment. You should carefully review the Prospectus 
for a description of the risks associated with an investment in BXPE. These 
risks include, but are not limited to, the following: 

 Although the investment professionals of Blackstone have extensive 
investment experience generally, including extensive experience 
operating and investing for the PE Platform, BXPE has only recently 
commenced operations and has limited operating history.  We cannot 
provide assurance that Blackstone will be able to successfully implement 
BXPE’s investment strategy, or that investments made by BXPE will 
generate expected returns. 

 This is a “blind pool” offering and thus you will not have the opportunity 
to evaluate our future investments before we make them.

 We do not intend to list our Shares on any securities exchange, and we 
do not expect a secondary market in our Shares to develop. 

 We have implemented a periodic redemption program, but there is 
no guarantee we will be able to make such redemptions and if we do 
only a limited number of Shares will be eligible for redemption and 
redemptions will be subject to available liquidity and other significant 
restrictions. This means that BXPE will be more illiquid than other 
investment products or portfolios. In addition, there are limits on the 
ownership and transferability of our Shares. As such, BXPE can be 
described as illiquid in nature. 

 Further, the valuation of BXPE’s investments will be difficult, may be 
based on imperfect information and is subject to inherent uncertainties, 
and the resulting values may differ from values that would have been 
determined had a ready market existed for such investments, from 

values placed on such investments by other investors and from prices at 
which such investments may ultimately be sold.

 An investment in our Shares is not suitable for you if you need ready 
access to the money you invest. 

 The purchase and redemption price for our Shares will be based on our 
net asset value (“NAV”) and are not based on any public trading market. 
While there will be independent valuations of our direct investments 
from time to time, the valuation of private equity investments is 
inherently subjective, and our NAV may not accurately reflect the actual 
price at which our investments could be liquidated on any given day.

 The acquisition of our investments may be financed in substantial part 
by borrowing, which increases our exposure to loss. The use of leverage 
involves a high degree of financial risk and will increase the exposure of 
the investments to adverse economic factors.

 The private equity industry generally, and BXPE’s investment activities 
in particular, are affected by general economic and market conditions, 
such as interest rates, availability and spreads of credit, credit defaults, 
inflation rates, economic uncertainty, changes in tax, currency control 
and other applicable laws and regulations, trade barriers, technological 
developments and national and international political, environmental and 
socioeconomic circumstances. Identifying, closing and realizing attractive 
private equity investments that fall within BXPE’s investment mandate is 
highly competitive and involves a high degree of uncertainty.

 BXPE’s investments may be concentrated at any time in a limited number 
of industries, geographies or investments, and, as a consequence, may 
be more substantially affected by the unfavorable performance of even 
a single investment as compared to a more diversified portfolio. In any 
event, diversification is not a guarantee of either a return or protection 
against loss in declining markets.

BXPE is authorized and supervised by the Luxembourg supervisory 
authority, the Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier (the 
“CSSF”). Such authorization does not, however, imply approval by any 
Luxembourg authority of the contents of the Prospectus or of the portfolio 
of investments held by BXPE. Any representation to the contrary is 
unauthorized and unlawful. 

References to the “Fund” should be read as references to Blackstone 
Private Equity Strategies Fund SICAV (“BXPE Feeder SICAV”), Blackstone 
Private Equity Strategies Fund (Master) FCP, BXPE Aggregator and their 
parallel entities, unless otherwise specified or unless the context otherwise 
requires. References to the “BXPE US” should be read as references to 
Blackstone Private Equity Strategies Fund L.P. (together with any feeder 
fund) and references to the “BXPE Fund Program” as references to “BXPE” 
and “BXPE US”. Capitalized terms used but not defined will have the 
meanings set forth in the prospectus prepared for BXPE (the “Prospectus”). 
The words “we”, “us” and “our” refer to BXPE, together with its consolidated 
subsidiaries, unless the context requires otherwise. Financial information is 
approximate and as of 31 December 2024, unless otherwise indicated and 
may change materially in the future.

1 72 3 4 5 6

Lower Risk Higher Risk

Risk Indicator
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Conflicts of Interest. There may be occasions when BXPE’s investment 
manager, and its affiliates will encounter potential conflicts of interest 
in connection with BXPE’s activities including, without limitation, the 
allocation of investment opportunities, relationships with Blackstone’s 
and its affiliates’ investment banking and advisory clients, and the diverse 
interests of BXPE’s investor group. There can be no assurance that 
Blackstone will identify, mitigate, or resolve all conflicts of interest in a 
manner that is favorable to BXPE.

Diversification; Potential Lack Thereof. Diversification is not a guarantee 
of either a return or protection against loss in declining markets. The number 
of investments which BXPE makes may be limited, which would cause BXPE’s 
investments to be more susceptible to fluctuations in value resulting from 
adverse economic or business conditions with respect thereto. There is 
assurance that any of BXPE’s investments will perform well or even return 
capital; if certain investments perform unfavorably, for BXPE to achieve 
above-average returns, one or a few of its investments must perform very 
well. There is no assurance that this will be the case. In addition, certain 
geographic regions and/or industries in which BXPE is heavily invested may be 
more adversely affected from economic pressures when compared to other 
geographic regions and/or industries.

Exchange Currency Risk. BXPE is denominated in U.S. dollars (USD). 
Shareholders holding Shares with a functional currency other than USD 
should acknowledge that they are exposed to fluctuations of the USD foreign 
exchange rate and/or hedging costs, which may lead to variations on the 
amount to be distributed, and all subscription payments and distributions, as 
well as returns, will be calculated and reported in the functional currency of 
the Class. This risk is not considered in the indicator shown above. Currency 
fluctuations and expenses related to hedging transactions may negatively 
impact the returns of BXPE as a whole. Each Class of Shares may differ in overall 
performance, and certain fees (including, but not limited to, the Management 
Fee, Performance Participation Allocation and AIFM and Administration Fee) 
will be calculated in the Reference Currency. BXPE will incur expenses in 
multiple currencies, meaning that payments may increase or decrease as a 
result of currency exchange fluctuations.

Highly Competitive Market for Investment Opportunities. The activity 
of identifying, completing and realizing attractive investments is highly 
competitive, and involves a high degree of uncertainty. There can be no 
assurance that BXPE will be able to locate, consummate and exit investments 
that satisfy its objectives or realize upon their values or that BXPE will be 
able to fully invest its available capital. There is no guarantee that investment 
opportunities will be allocated to BXPE and/or that the activities of Blackstone’s 
other funds will not adversely affect the interests of BXPE.

Lack of Liquidity. There is no current public trading market for the shares, and 
Blackstone does not expect that such a market will ever develop. Therefore, 
repurchase of shares by BXPE will likely be the only way for you to dispose of 
your shares. BXPE expects to offer to repurchase shares at a price equal to 
the applicable net asset value as of the repurchase date and not based on the 
price at which you initially purchased your shares. Shares redeemed within 
two years of the date of issuance will be redeemed at 95% of the applicable 
net asset value as of the redemption date, unless such deduction is waived 
by BXPE in its discretion, including without limitation in case of redemptions 
resulting from death, qualifying disability or divorce. As a result, you may 
receive less than the price you paid for your shares when you sell them to 
BXPE pursuant to BXPE’s share repurchase program.

The vast majority of BXPE’s assets are expected to consist of private equity 
investments and other investments that cannot generally be readily liquidated 
without impacting BXPE’s ability to realize full value upon their disposition. 

Therefore, BXPE may not always have a sufficient amount of cash to 
immediately satisfy redemption requests. As a result, your ability to have your 
shares redeemed by BXPE may be limited and at times you may not be able to 
liquidate your investment.

Limited Operating History. BXPE has a limited operating history, and 
therefore, prospective investors will have a limited track record or operating 
history upon which they may evaluate its performance. Although Blackstone 
Private Equity has made investments through certain of its funds and 
separately managed accounts that would have been within the investment 
objective of BXPE, BXPE will make investments under different geographic, 
market, regulatory and economic conditions than those prevalent when 
the previous investments were made. The size and type of investments to 
be made by BXPE could differ from prior Blackstone investments. Where 
provided, as part of the Prospectus or otherwise, the prior investment results 
of Blackstone Private Equity are provided for illustrative purposes only 
and not to imply that such results will be obtained in the future. Although 
Blackstone’s investment professionals have considerable prior experience, 
the past investment performance of Blackstone Private Equity (and 
investment vehicles sponsored or managed by Blackstone Private Equity) 
is not necessarily indicative of BXPE’s future results, and there can be no 
assurance that BXPE will achieve comparable results, be able to effectively 
implement its investment strategy, achieve its investment or asset allocation 
objectives, be profitable or avoid substantial losses.

No Assurance of Investment Return. Prospective investors should be 
aware that an investment in BXPE is speculative and involves a high degree 
of risk. There can be no assurance that BXPE will achieve comparable results, 
implement its investment strategy, achieve its objectives or avoid substantial 
losses or that any expected returns will be met (or that the returns will 
be commensurate with the risks of investing in the type of transactions 
described herein). The portfolio companies in which BXPE may invest 
(directly or indirectly) are speculative investments and will be subject to 
significant business and financial risks. BXPE’s performance may be volatile. 
An investment should only be considered by eligible investors who can afford 
to lose all or a substantial amount of their investment. A Fund will incur costs 
which will impact on the investment return throughout the life of such Fund. 
Fund costs may include, for example: fund management; fund administration 
and servicing; legal; compliance; record-keeping; certain kinds of distribution 
charges; and other operating costs. A Fund’s fees and expenses may offset 
or exceed its profits. A more detailed description of relevant fund costs and 
expenses is included in a Fund’s offering documents. 

Recent Market Events Risk. Local, regional, or global events such as war 
(e.g., Russia / Ukraine), acts of terrorism, public health issues like pandemics or 
epidemics (e.g., COVID-19), recession, or other economic, political and global 
macro factors and events could lead to a substantial economic downturn or 
recession in the U.S. and global economies and have a significant impact on 
the Fund and its investments.  The recovery from such downturns is uncertain 
and may last for an extended period of time or result in significant volatility, 
and many of the risks discussed herein associated with an investment in the 
Fund may be increased.

Reliance on Key Management Personnel. The success of BXPE will 
depend, in large part, upon the skill and expertise of certain Blackstone 
professionals. In the event of the death, disability or departure of any key 
Blackstone professionals, the business and the performance of BXPE may be 
therefore adversely affected. Some Blackstone professionals may have other 
responsibilities, including senior management responsibilities, throughout 
Blackstone and, therefore, conflicts are expected to arise in the allocation 
of such personnel’s time (including as a result of such personnel deriving 
financial benefit from these other activities, including fees and performance-
based compensation).

Key Risk Factors (Cont'd)
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Risk of Capital Loss. BXPE offers no capital protection guarantee. This 
investment involves a significant risk of capital loss and should only be 
made if an investor can afford the loss of its entire investment. There are 
no guarantees or assurances regarding the achievement of investment 
objectives or performance. This product does not include any protection from 
future market performance so you could lose some or all of your investment. 
If we are not able to pay you what is owed, you could lose some or all of 
your investment. BXPE’s fees and expenses may offset or exceed its profits. 
In considering any investment performance information contained in this 
document and related materials (“the Materials”), recipients should bear in 
mind that past performance is does not predict future returns.

Risks of Secondary Investing. The funds managed by Strategic Partners 
(the “SP Funds”) expect to invest primarily in third party – sponsored private 
investment funds (“Underlying Funds”) and, indirectly, in investments selected 
by such unrelated sponsors. The interests in which the SP Funds seek to invest 
are highly illiquid and typically subject to significant restrictions on transfer, 
including a requirement for approval of the transfer by the general partner or 
the investment manager of the Underlying Funds. The SP Funds will not have 
an active role in the management of the Underlying Funds or their portfolio 
investments. The overall performance of the SP Funds will depend in large part 
on the acquisition price paid by the SP Funds for secondary investments and 
on the structure of the acquisitions. The performance of the SP Funds will be 
adversely affected in the event the valuations assumed by Strategic Partners 
in the course of negotiating acquisitions of investments prove to be too high. 
The activity of identifying and completing attractive secondary investments is 
highly competitive and involves a high degree of uncertainty. There can be no 
assurance that the SP Funds will be able to identify and complete investments 
which satisfy their rate of return objectives, or that they will be able to invest 
fully their committed capital.

In many cases, the SP Funds expect to have the opportunity to acquire 
portfolios of Underlying Funds from sellers on an ‘all or nothing’ basis. It 

may be more difficult for Strategic Partners to successfully value and close 
on investments being sold on such basis. In addition, the SP Funds may 
invest with third parties through joint ventures, structured transactions and 
similar arrangements. These arrangements may expose the SP Funds to risks 
associated with counterparties in addition to the risks associated with the 
Underlying Funds and their managers and portfolio companies.

Sustainability Risks. BXPE may be exposed to an environmental, social 
or governance event or condition that, if it occurs, could have a material 
adverse effect, actual or potential, on the value of the investments made by 
BXPE. Blackstone seeks to identify material sustainability risks as part of its 
investment process.  

Target Allocations. There can be no assurance that the Fund will achieve its 
objectives or avoid substantial losses. Allocation strategies and targets depend 
on a variety of factors, including prevailing market conditions and investment 
availability. There is no guarantee that such strategies and targets will be 
achieved and any particular investment may not meet the target criteria.

This material is not to be reproduced or distributed to any other persons 
(other than professional advisors of the persons receiving this material) and 
is intended solely for the use of the persons to whom it has been delivered.

The sole purpose of this material is to inform, and it in no way is intended to 
attract any funds or deposits. Investments mentioned may not be appropriate 
for all investors. Any product discussed herein may be purchased only after 
an investor has carefully reviewed BXPE’s Prospectus and executed the 
subscription documents. 

Alternative investments often are speculative, typically have higher fees than 
traditional investments, often include a high degree of risk and are appropriate 
only for eligible, long-term investors who are willing to forgo liquidity and put 
capital at risk for an indefinite period of time. They may be highly illiquid and 
can engage in leverage and other speculative practices that may increase 
volatility and risk of loss.

Key Risk Factors (Cont'd)
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Important Disclosure Information 

Additional Detail on Performance Methodology. This material contains 
references to our net asset value (NAV, as defined below) and NAV based 
calculations, which involve significant professional judgment. Net Asset 
Value is calculated in accordance with the Valuation Policy and the terms 
of the Prospectus.

Blackstone Proprietary Data. The source of information in this communication 
is Blackstone proprietary data unless otherwise stated. Certain information 
and data provided herein is based on Blackstone proprietary knowledge and 
data. Portfolio companies may provide proprietary market data to Blackstone, 
including about local market supply and demand conditions, current market 
rents and operating expenses, capital expenditures, and valuations for multiple 
assets. Such proprietary market data is used by Blackstone to evaluate market 
trends as well as to underwrite potential and existing investments. While 
Blackstone currently believes that such information is reliable for purposes 
used herein, it is subject to change, and reflects Blackstone’s opinion as 
to whether the amount, nature and quality of the data is sufficient for the 
applicable conclusion, and no representations are made as to the accuracy or 
completeness thereof.

Case Studies. The selected investment examples, case studies and/
or transaction summaries presented or referred to herein may not be 
representative of all transactions of a given type or of investments generally 
and are intended to be illustrative of the types of investments that have been 
made or may be made by BXPE in employing its investment strategies. It 
should not be assumed that BXPE will make equally successful or comparable 
investments in the future. Moreover, the actual investments to be made by 
BXPE or any other future fund will be made under different market conditions 
from those investments presented or referenced in the Materials and may 
differ substantially from the investments presented herein as a result of various 
factors. Prospective investors should also note that the selected investment 
examples, case studies and/or transaction summaries presented or referred to 
herein have involved Blackstone professionals who will be involved with the 
management and operations of BXPE as well as other Blackstone personnel 
who will not be involved in the management and operations of BXPE. Certain 
investment examples described herein may be owned by investment vehicles 
managed by Blackstone and by certain other third-party equity partners, and 
in connection therewith Blackstone may own less than a majority of the equity 
securities of such investment. 

Feeder Fund Structures. A feeder fund will invest all or substantially all 
its assets in its master fund. A master-feeder fund structure is typically put 
in place for legal and commercial purposes. In general, investors will hold 
their interests at the level of the feeder fund and fund costs and expenses 
of the overall master-feeder structure will ultimately be borne by investors 
on a pro-rated basis as applicable. For third party, non-Blackstone managed 
feeder funds investing into a Blackstone master fund, there are likely to be 
additional costs, fees and expenses that investors in those third-party feeder 
funds incur from the relevant operator of those third-party feeder funds. 
Therefore, in some instances, the performance of a feeder fund will differ or 
be lower, maybe materially, to that of its master fund due to the additional 
costs, fees and expenses that may have been incurred at the feeder fund 
level. The performance shown herein reflects that of direct investors and is 
net of the respective Fund’s management fee, carried interest and other fees 
and expenses.

Forward-Looking Statements. Certain forward-looking statements, 
including financial projections and estimates and statements regarding future 
performance, are inherently uncertain and there may be important factors that 
could cause actual outcomes or results to differ materially from those indicated 
in such statements. Blackstone undertakes no obligation to publicly update or 
review any forward-looking statement, whether as a result of new information, 
future developments or otherwise.

Opinions. Opinions expressed reflect the current opinions of Blackstone as of 
the date appearing in the Materials only and are based on Blackstone’s opinions 
of the current market environment, which is subject to change. Certain 
information contained in the Materials discusses general market activity, 
industry or sector trends, or other broad-based economic, market or political 
conditions and should not be construed as research or investment advice.

Portfolio Company Initiatives. A Blackstone investment in any portfolio 
company is no guarantee of future opportunities for such company and none 
of Blackstone funds or their affiliates makes any representation or warranty 
regarding such opportunities for any portfolio company. There is no assurance 
that any portfolio company will participate in the cost saving initiatives 
discussed herein or will experience similar or positive results.

Realized and Unrealized Returns. Realized or partially realized returns 
represent both (i) proceeds from investments that are realized and have been 
disposed of and (ii) realized proceeds from unrealized investments, such as 
current income, financing proceeds, or partial sale proceeds. The unrealized 
value is based on a fair market value ascribed by Blackstone, which is verified 
as being reasonable by a third-party to approximate the cash flow that would 
have been generated had the asset been disposed of as of the Reporting Date. 
Actual realized value of the applicable fund’s currently unrealized investments 
will depend on, among other factors, future operating results, the value of the 
assets and market conditions at the time of disposition, legal and contractual 
restrictions, any related transaction costs and the timing and manner of sale, 
all of which may differ from the assumptions and circumstances on which the 
current unrealized values are based. Accordingly, the actual realized values of 
unrealized and partially realized investments may differ materially from the 
values presented herein. While we currently believe that the assumptions used 
to arrive at unrealized value are reasonable under the circumstances, there is 
no guarantee that the conditions on which such assumptions are based will 
materialize or otherwise be applicable to the investments.

Reserves. As is customary in the industry, BXPE may establish holdbacks 
or reserves, including for estimated accrued expenses, management 
fees, administration fees, servicing fees, pending or anticipated liabilities, 
investments, claims and contingencies relating to BXPE. Estimating the 
appropriate amount of such reserves is difficult and inadequate or excessive 
reserves could impair the investments returns to investors. If BXPE’s reserves 
are inadequate and other cash is unavailable, BXPE may be unable to take 
advantage of attractive investments or protect its existing holdings. In these 
circumstances the Investment Manager may allocate such opportunities 
to Other Blackstone Accounts, which, in the case of further investments in 
existing Portfolio Entities could result in BXPE being subject to dilution and 
may give rise to other significant risks and conflicts of interest, such as limiting 
BXPE’s available liquidity.

Tactical Opportunities. The “Tac Opps Enterprise” is inclusive of commingled 
funds, parallel SMAs, co-investments, and all Tac Opps adjacencies, but 
excludes Blackstone Growth. The “Tac Opps Business” is inclusive of co-
investments, commingled funds, SMAs, and certain Tac Opps adjacencies that 
were formed as part of continuation vehicles for existing investments held in 
the commingled funds and parallel SMAs but excludes Blackstone Growth.

Tax. Investments mentioned herein may not be suitable for any or all recipients 
of this material, and potential investors are advised not to make any investment 
decision unless they have taken independent advice from an appropriately 
authorized advisor. An investment in BXPE may involve complex tax structures, 
which may result in delays in the distribution of important tax information and 
the requirement that investors obtain an extension on their income tax returns. 
Notwithstanding anything in this material to the contrary, to comply with U.S. 
Treasury Regulations Section 1.6011-4(b)(3) (i), each investor or prospective 
investor in BXPE (and any employee, representative or other agent of such 
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Important Disclosure Information (Cont'd)

investor or prospective investor) may disclose to any and all persons, without 
limitation of any kind, the U.S. federal, state or local income tax treatment and 
tax structure of BXPE or any transactions contemplated by this material, it 
being understood and agreed, for this purpose, (i) the name of, or any other 
identifying information regarding (A) BXPE or any existing or future investor (or 
any affiliate thereof) in BXPE, or (B) any investment or transaction entered into 
by BXPE, (ii) any performance information relating to BXPE or its investments, 
and (iii) any performance or other information relating to previous funds or 
investments sponsored by Blackstone, do not constitute such tax treatment or 
tax structure information.

Third-Party Information. Certain information contained in the Materials has 
been obtained from sources outside Blackstone, which in certain cases have 
not been updated through the date hereof. While such information is believed 

to be reliable for purposes used herein, no representations are made as to the 
accuracy or completeness thereof and none of Blackstone, its funds, nor any of 
their affiliates takes any responsibility for, and has not independently verified, 
any such information.

Trends. There can be no assurances that any of the trends described herein 
will continue or will not reverse. Past events and trends do not imply, predict or 
guarantee, and are not necessarily indicative of, future events or results.

Please refer to the Key Information Document (KID) before making any 
investment decision. The KID is available in multiple languages on BXPEF.com.

PWS202503256R
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Management Report 
This Management Report of Blackstone Private Equity Strategies Fund SICAV (“BXPE Feeder SICAV” or the “Fund”) is prepared for 
the year ended 31 December 2024. 

Any capitalised term not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning ascribed to it in the version of the prospectus of BXPE 
Feeder SICAV applicable at the date of issuance of this report (the “Prospectus”). The Prospectus is available on www.bxpef.com.  

I.  Overview of Business 

Corporate Structure 

BXPE Feeder SICAV is a vehicle for investment into BXPE. BXPE is a private equity investment program operated through several  
entities and the term “BXPE” or “BXPE Lux” is used to refer to the program as a whole. 

BXPE Feeder SICAV is an open-ended fund organized as a multi-compartment Luxembourg investment company with variable capital 
(société d’investissement à capital variable) governed by Part II  of the Luxembourg law of 17 December 2010 relating to undertakings 
for collective investment, as amended (the “2010 Law”). BXPE Feeder SICAV is currently set up with one compartment, namely 
Blackstone Private Equity Strategies Fund SICAV – BXPE Feeder SICAV – I  (the “Sub-Fund”).  This Management Report relates to BXPE 
Feeder SICAV as a whole. For the avoidance of doubt, any reference to BXPE Feeder SICAV in this Management Report shall be 
understood, as the case may be, as a reference to the Sub-Fund, BXPE Feeder SICAV or BXPE Feeder SICAV acting for the account of 
the Sub-Fund. 

Blackstone Private Equity Strategies Fund (Master) FCP (“BXPE Master FCP”), a Luxembourg mutual fund (fonds commun de 
placement) governed by Part II  of the 2010 Law, is the master fund for BXPE Feeder SICAV. 

BXPE Feeder SICAV will invest all or substantially all of its assets into one or more sub-funds of BXPE Master FCP, which wil l invest all  
or substantially all of their assets through BXPE Aggregator SCSp (“BXPE Aggregator”). BXPE Aggregator will make investments 
alongside Blackstone Private Equity Strategies Fund L.P., a Delaware Limited Partnership (together with any feeder fund thereof, 
“BXPE U.S.”). BXPE Lux and BXPE U.S. together form the “BXPE Fund Program”.  

The investment objective and strategies, related risk factors and potential conflicts of interest, subscription and redemption terms, 
calculation of net asset value, fees and expenses, tax and regulatory considerations, and other aspects of the activities of BXPE Feeder 
SICAV and BXPE Master FCP are substantially identical except as specifically identified in their respective Prospectuses.  

A separate annual report is made available by the AIFM in order to comply with the annual requirements for periodic and regular 
disclosure to investors set out under (i) AIFMD and (ii) the Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) No 231/2013 of 19 December 2012 
(the “Regulation”). The AIFMD report for the year ended 31 December 2024 as required under AIFMD and the Regulation will be 
available by 30 June 2025. 

Investment Objective 

BXPE’s investment objective is to deliver medium- to long-term capital appreciation and, to a lesser extent, generate modest current 
income. BXPE will seek to meet its investment objective by investing primarily in privately negotiated, equity-oriented investments, 

leveraging the talent and investment capabilities of Blackstone Inc.’s (“Blackstone” or the “Sponsor”) private equity platform to create 
an attractive portfolio of alternative investments diversified across geographies and sectors. 

Investment Strategy 

BXPE will primarily invest in privately negotiated, equity-oriented investments, leveraging the talent and investment capabilities of 
Blackstone’s PE Platform to create an attractive portfolio of alternative investments diversified across geographies and sectors. To a 
lesser extent, BXPE will also invest in debt and other securities, including but not limited to loans, debt securities, public equities, 
collateralized debt obligations, collateralized loan obligations, asset-backed securities, mortgage-backed securities and other 
securitized products, derivatives, money market instruments, cash and cash equivalents (“Debt and Other Securities”).  

In the ordinary course, we will generally seek to invest at least 80% of our NAV in Private Equity Investments and up to 20% of our 
NAV in Debt and Other Securities. Our investments may vary materially from these indicative allocation ranges, including due to 
factors such as a large inflow to capital over a short period of time, the Sponsor’s assessment of the relative attractiveness of 
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opportunities, or an increase in anticipated cash requirements or repurchase requests and subject to any limitations or requirements 
relating to applicable law.  

BXPE focuses on transactions where Blackstone’s scale, brand and/or operating intervention capabilities can create competitive 
advantages for the BXPE Fund Program. BXPE’s differentiated access to the world’s largest global private equity platform1 uniquely 
positions the Fund among competitors, allowing for a broader universe of investment and deployment opportunities. Identifying, 
closing and realizing attractive private equity investments that fall within BXPE’s investment mandate is highly competitive and 
involves a high degree of uncertainty.4, 5 We believe the depth and breadth of our investment strategy and Blackstone’s PE Platform, 
including the deep reservoir of proprietary data, represents a significant advantage as we compete for quality investment 
opportunities and help our portfolio companies compete in their respective markets. 

There can be no assurance that BXPE will be able to achieve its objective, pursue its objective, pursue any particular theme or avoid 
substantial  losses. Diversification does not ensure a profit or protect against losses. See “Risk Factors, Potential  Conflicts of Interest 
and Other Considerations” of the Prospectus. BXPE’s portfolio composition as of 31 December 2024 is in line with the Investment 
Objective and Strategy stated above. 

Investment Restrictions 

In accordance with the diversification requirements of Circular IML 91/75, BXPE Master FCP will not at any one time directly or 
indirectly, through the BXPE Aggregator, invest and hold more than 20% of its NAV in any single Investment as measured at the time 
of acquisition; provided that such diversification will be assessed on a look-through basis and no remedial action will be required if 
such restriction is exceeded for any reason other than the acquisition of a new Investment (including the exercise of rights attached 
to an Investment). 

II.  Performance Summary 

The Fund generated strong returns in 2024, delivering a 16.2% total net return (Class I Shares). BXPE’s performance helped mitigate 
the conventional J-curve, delivered one-tenth the volatility of public markets and provided positive returns every month.7 The 
portfolio is young, with an average investment age of less than six months, which we believe leaves significant room for potential  
growth through active management and value creation. 

2024 was marked by appreciating equity markets, fueled by declining interest rates, a resilient global economy and enhanced investor 
sentiment following reductions in central banks' interest rates. These factors may result in increased transaction activity in 2025, 
which may increase our ability to deploy capital in attractive opportunities and may, in turn, enhance our ability to meet our 
investment objectives. However, the potential  for continued fluctuation in industry conditions, regulatory policies and general 
macroeconomic events may contribute to continued market volatility in the United States and globally. 

Total Returns (% Net of Fees)4, 5 

Share Class          Inception Date(i) Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec YTD / 
ITD 

Class I-A 02-Jan-24 1.8% 0.6% 1.2% 0.9% 0.7% 1.9% 0.5% 2.5% 1.2% 0.9% 1.7% 1.4% 16.2% 

Class I-D 01-Feb-24 - 0.6% 1.2% 0.9% 0.7% 1.9% 0.5% 2.5% 1.2% 0.9% 1.7% 1.4% 14.2% 

Class A-A 01-Feb-24 - 0.6% 1.1% 0.8% 0.6% 1.8% 0.4% 2.5%   1.1%   0.8% 1.6% 1.3% 13.3% 

Class A-D 01-Feb-24 - 0.6% 1.1% 0.8% 0.6% 1.8% 0.4% 2.5% 1.1% 0.8% 1.6% 1.3% 13.3% 

Class I-A EUR 02-Dec-24 - - - - - - - - - - - 3.6% 3.6% 

Class A-A EUR 02-Dec-24 - - - - - - - - - - - 3.5% 3.5% 

 

 

 

 

PPast performance does not predict future returns. This product is subject to the risk of capital loss. (i) Performance is shown from the share class inception date (being the date on which the share 
class has accepted third-party capital). Past performance of share classes with less than 12 months of performance data is to be read as supplemental to the performance of the fund. 
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III.  Investment Activity and Portfolio Overview 

BXPE is structured as a perpetual-life strategy, with monthly, fully funded subscriptions and periodic repurchase offers, which we 
believe enables investors to better manage exposure to the private equity asset class and achieve the potential  benefits of 
compounding returns. As an investor in BXPE, individuals gain direct exposure to the largest global private equity platform.1 BXPE is 
designed to invest across all  of Blackstone private equity’s major strategies: Corporate Private Equity, Secondaries, Opportunistic, 
Growth and Life Sciences. As of 31 December 2024, we have constructed a portfolio that includes strategic, sector and geographic 
diversification, focusing on businesses that align with our thematic approach to investing. We aim to have a significant majority of 
our portfolio invested behind Blackstone’s high-conviction themes, including AI and data generation, power and energy demand, 
innovation in healthcare and life sciences, digitization, experiences and franchisors. The digitization of the economy is driving 
unprecedented demand for compute, digital infrastructure and power. Further, the modern consumer supports shifting trends 
towards e-commerce, a preference for experiences and an emphasis on high-quality, premium brands. 

As of 31 December 2024, BXPE Fund Program’s portfolio consists of 75+ Private Equity Investments, including both closed and future 
commitments, with an aggregate value of $9.0 billion.  

As of 31 December 2024, the Fund’s top 10 Private Equity Investments, based on fair market value, were(i ):  

Investment Description 

Adevinta Online classifieds company 

AIR Commercial HVAC rep 

AirTrunk Data center developer and operator 

Assent Provider of product compliance software 

ATG Live theatre operator 

Encore Provider of audiovisual services for events, and conferences 

Hipgnosis Music royalties 

Sedgwick Provider of insurance claims administration 

L’Occitane Multi-brand beauty and skincare 

SIA Partners Independent management and AI consulting firm 

As of 31 December 2024, the Fund’s portfolio composition was: 

Strategy Breakdown 
(% of Fair Value)1 8, ( i i ) 

Sector Breakdown 
(% of Fair Value)1 9, ( i i ) 

  

 

 
Redemption requests are expected but not guaranteed and are subject to early redemption deduction, quarterly limitations and certain specified restrictions set forth in the Prospectus. There is 
no assurance that BXPE will access all these strategies, or in any particular proportion, and available strategies may change from time to time. Diversification does not ensure a profit or protect 
against losses. There is no assurance that BXPE will be diversified. | (i) Excludes Debt & Other Securities positions and private equity investments that have signed, but not yet closed. | (ii) “% of 
Fair Value” represents BXPE’s sum of Investments at Fair Value and Affiliated Investee Funds (exclusive of bank loans, and interests in collateralized loan obligations (“CLOs”)), with additional 
exclusions specified in the corresponding footnotes. | (iii) Other is comprised of Healthcare 7%, Technology & Services 6%, Specialty Finance 3% and Energy 1%. 
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75%
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14%Financial Services

12%

Software
11%
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Regional Breakdown 
(% of Fair Value)20, ( i )  

Portfolio Breakdown 
(% of Fair Value)2 1, ( i ) 

 
 

 

(i) “% of Fair Value” represents BXPE’s sum of Investments at Fair Value and Affiliated Investee Funds (exclusive of bank loans, and interests in collateralized loan obligations (“CLOs”)), with additional 
exclusions specified in the corresponding footnotes. 

IV. Capital Structure 

Hedging Summary 

BXPE is a USD denominated fund that can invest in assets across multiple currencies, primarily in USD, and to a lesser extent other 
European and global currencies. Broadly, BXPE seeks to hedge foreign currency exposure to the Fund’s denomination, USD. On a 
monthly basis, BXPE hedges forex exposure, based on the fair market value of the portfolio. Hedging is conducted by an FX forwards 
program that is rolled on a quarterly basis and adjusted monthly. Ultimately, FX hedging is an active portfolio management exercise 
and aims to minimize, but not fully remove, currency volatility on the portfolio. 

V. Capital Raising 

The total number of net subscriptions received across BXPE for the period from 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024 was $1,134.8 
million, bringing total net inflows since inception to $1,134.8 million. Capital raising has been driven by the onboarding of new global 
and local European private wealth partners and inflows from direct investors. 

VI.  Events Subsequent to the Year End  
Subsequent to the year end, BXPE Feeder SICAV had net subscriptions for shares of $1,467.7 million. 

BXPE Feeder SICAV launched three new share classes on 2 January 2025: Class ID CAD, IDD and AA Italy EUR, and one new share class 
on 3 March 2025: Class IF IA. 

Apart from the above, the Directors have evaluated the impact of all subsequent events through to 28 March 2025, which is the date 
that these financial statements were available to be issued and have determined that there were no other subsequent events 
requiring adjustment to or disclosure in the financial statements. 

VII.  Principal Risks, Uncertainties and Conflicts of Interests 

Principal Risks and Uncertainties 

The purchase of shares in the Fund entails a high degree of risk that is suitable for sophisticated investors for whom an investment 
in the Fund does not represent a complete investment programme, and who also fully understand BXPE’s strategy, characteristics 
and risks, including the use of borrowings to leverage investments, and are capable of bearing the risk of an investment in the Fund. 

In addition to the risks and conflicts of interest detailed in Section XVII – “Risk Factors, Potential  Conflicts of Interest and Other 
Considerations” of the Prospectus, below please find additional notable risks for the Fund: 

 

North America
54%

EMEA
33%

APAC
13%

Private Equity Investments
94%

Debt  & Other Securit ies
6%
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General Economic and Market Conditions 

The private equity industry generally, and BXPE’s investment activities in particular, are affected by general economic and market 
conditions and activity, such as interest rates, availability and spreads of credit, credit defaults, inflation rates, economic uncertainty, 
changes in tax, currency control and other applicable laws and regulations, trade barriers, consumer spending patterns, technological 
developments and national and international political, environmental and socioeconomic circumstances. For example, during 2022, 
inflation reached generational highs and the U.S. Federal Reserve increased benchmark interest rates seven times to stem inflation 
which has created economic uncertainty and market volatil ity. Market disruptions in a single country could cause a worsening of 
conditions on a regional and even global level. A worsening of general economic and market conditions would likely affect the level 
and volatility of securities prices and the liquidity of BXPE’s Investments, which could impair BXPE’s profitability, result in losses and 
impact the Shareholders’ investment returns and limit BXPE’s ability to satisfy Redemption Requests. A depression, recession or 
slowdown in the global economy or one or more regional markets (or any particular segment thereof ) or a weakening of credit markets 
(including a perceived increase in counterparty default risk) would have a pronounced impact on the Sponsor, BXPE and Portfolio 
Entities (which would likely be exacerbated by the presence of leverage in a particular Portfolio Entity’s capital structure) and could 
adversely affect their profitability, creditworthiness and ability to execute on their business plans, sell assets, satisfy existing 
obligations and redemptions, make and realize Investments successfully, originate or refinance credit or draw on existing financings 
and commitments. 

Volatility in the global financial  markets and the political systems of certain countries has in the past had, and may in the future have, 
spill-over effects which adversely impact global financial markets generally and U.S. markets in particular. Moreover, a recession, 
slowdown and/or sustained downturn in the global economies (or any particular segment thereof ) or weakening of credit markets 
will adversely affect BXPE’s profitability, impede the ability of Portfolio Entities to perform under or refinance their existing 
obligations, and impair BXPE’s ability to effectively exit Investments on favorable terms. Any of the foregoing events could result in 
substantial  or total losses to BXPE in respect of certain Investments, which losses will likely be exacerbated by the presence of 
leverage in a particular Portfolio Entity’s capital structure. Blackstone itself could also be affected by difficult conditions in the capital 
markets and any overall weakening of the financial services industry in particular or of the United States and/or global economies 
generally. 

Inflation 

The United States and other developed economies have recently begun to experience higher than normal inflation rates. It remains 
uncertain whether substantial  inflation in the United States and other developed economies will be sustained over an extended 
period of time and how significantly it will impact the United States or other economies. Inflation and rapid fluctuations in inflation 
rates have recently had, and may continue to have, negative effects on the economies and financial markets (including securities 
markets) of various countries, including those with emerging economies. For example, if a Portfolio Entity is unable to increase its 
revenue in times of higher inflation, its profitability may be adversely affected, including, without limitation, significant increase to 
such Portfolio Entity’s operating cost. Portfolio Entities may have revenues linked to some extent to inflation, including without 
limitation, by government regulations and contractual arrangements. As inflation rises, a Portfolio Entity may earn more revenue but 
incur higher expenses. As inflation declines, a Portfolio Entity may not be able to reduce expenses commensurate with any resulting 
reduction in revenue. Furthermore, wages and prices of inputs increase during periods of inflation, which can negatively impact 
returns on investments. In an attempt to stabilize inflation, certain countries have imposed and may continue to impose wage and 
price controls at times and certain central banks have raised and may continue to raise interest rates.  

Past governmental efforts to curb inflation have also involved more drastic economic measures that have had a material ly adverse 
effect on the level of economic activity in the countries where such measures were employed, and similar governmental efforts could 
be taken in the future to curb inflation and could have similar effects. Certain countries, including the United States, have recently 
seen increased levels of inflation, and there can be no assurance that inflation will not become a more serious problem in the future 
and have an adverse impact on BXPE’s returns. 

Financial Market Fluctuations; Availability of Financing 

Declines or volatility in financial markets, including the securities and derivatives markets, would adversely affect the value of BXPE’s 
Investments. A significant market fluctuation often decreases tolerance for counterparty risks, which can negatively impact financial 
institutions, even causing their failure as occurred in the most recent economic downturn. BXPE and its Portfolio Entities expect to 
regularly seek to obtain new debt and refinance existing debt, including in the liquid debt markets, and significant declines in pricing 
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of debt securities or increases in interest rates, or other disruptions in the credit markets, would make it difficult to carry on normal 
financing activities, such as obtaining committed debt financing for acquisitions, bridge financings or permanent financings. 
Tightening of loan underwriting standards, which often occur during market disruptions, can have a negative impact including through 
reduction of permitted leverage levels and increased requirements for borrower quality. BXPE’s ability to generate attractive 
investment returns will be adversely affected by any worsening of financing terms and availability. 

Conflicts of Interest 

Blackstone has conflicts of interest, or conflicting loyalties, as a result of the numerous activities and relationships of Blackstone, the 
Sponsor, BXPE, the Other Blackstone Accounts, the Portfolio Entities of BXPE and Other Blackstone Accounts and affil iates, partners, 
members, shareholders, officers, directors and employees (current and former) of the foregoing, some of which are described herein. 
Additional conflicts of interest are also expected to arise by virtue of BXPE’s investments in third-party fund managers and their 
investment activities (including, where applicable, their management of third-party pooled investment vehicles), although such third-
party fund managers and third-party pooled investment vehicles will not be considered “affiliates” of Blackstone or BXPE for any 
purpose under the Prospectus. Not all potential, apparent and actual conflicts of interest are included in the Prospectus, and 
additional conflicts of interest could arise as a result of new activities, transactions or relationships commenced in the future. 
Potential Shareholders should review this section, the Prospectus and the Sponsor’s form ADV carefully before making an investment 
decision.  

If any matter arises that the Sponsor and its affiliates (including the Investment Managers) determine in their good faith judgment 
constitutes an actual and material conflict of interest, the Sponsor and relevant affiliates will  take the actions they determine in good 
faith may be necessary or appropriate to mitigate and/or disclose the conflict, which will be deemed to fully satisfy any fiduciary 
duties they may have to BXPE or the Shareholders. Thereafter, the Sponsor and relevant affiliates will be relieved of any liability 
related to the conflict to the fullest extent permitted by law.  

Actions that could be taken by the Sponsor or its affiliates to mitigate a conflict include, by way of example and without limitation, (i) 
if applicable, handling the conflict as described in the Prospectus, (ii) obtaining from the Board of Directors (or the non-affiliated 
members of the Board of Directors) advice, waiver or consent as to the conflict, or acting in accordance with standards or procedures 
approved by the Board to address the conflict, (iii) disposing of the investment or security giving rise to the conflict of interest, (iv) 
disclosing the conflict to the Board, including non-affiliated members of the Board, as applicable, or Shareholders (including, without 
limitation, in distribution notices, financial statements, letters to Shareholders or other communications), (v) appointing an 
independent representative to act or provide consent with respect to the matter giving rise to the conflict of interest, (vi) validating 
the arms-length nature of the transaction by referencing participation by unaffiliated third parties, (vii) in the case of conflicts among 
clients, creating groups of personnel within Blackstone separated by information barriers (which can be expected to be temporary 
and limited purpose in nature), each of which would advise or represent one of the clients that has a conflicting position with other 
clients, (viii) implementing policies and procedures reasonably designed to mitigate the conflict of interest, or (ix) otherwise handling 
the conflict as determined appropriate by the Sponsor in its good faith reasonable discretion. There can be no assurance that the 
Sponsor will identify or resolve all conflicts of interest in a manner that is favorable to BXPE. 

For the avoidance of any doubt, references to “delegate” above will include the Sub-Investment Managers and their affiliates in 
respect of conflicts arising in relation to investments in Debt and Other Securities. 

References to “Other Blackstone Accounts” describe, as the context requires, individually and collectively, any funds (including BXPE 
U.S.),  vehicles or accounts, including separately managed accounts, that Blackstone may establish, advise or sub-advise from time to 
time and to which Blackstone provides investment management or sub-advisory services, other than BXPE. 

BXPE is subject to certain conflicts of interest arising out of BXPE’s relationship with Blackstone, including the AIFM and its affiliates. 
Certain members of the Board of Directors are also executives of Blackstone and/or one or more of its affiliates. There is no guarantee 
that the policies and procedures adopted by BXPE, the terms of its Articles of Incorporation, the terms and conditions of the 
Investment Management Agreement, or the policies and procedures adopted by the Board of Directors, AIFM, the BX Managers, 
Blackstone and their affiliates, will enable BXPE to identify, adequately address or mitigate these conflicts of interest, or that the 
Sponsor will identify or resolve all conflicts of interest in a manner that is favorable to BXPE, and Shareholders may not be entitled 
to receive notice or disclosure of the occurrence of these conflicts or have any right to consent to them. 
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Risks and conflicts of interest are discussed in greater detail  in Section XVII – “Risk Factors, Potential  Conflicts of Interest and Other 
Considerations” of the Prospectus. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



To the Shareholders of
Blackstone Private Equity Strategies Fund SICAV
11-13 Boulevard de la Foire
L-1528 Luxembourg

RREPORT OF THEREVISEUR D’ENTREPRISES AGREE

Opinionn 

We have audited the financial statements of Blackstone Private Equity Strategies Fund SICAV, referred to as the “Fund”, which comprise the 
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2024 and the statements of comprehensive income, changes in amounts attributable to 
shareholders, and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting 
policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Fund as at 31 December 2024, 
and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards 
(IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union.

Basiss forr Opinionn 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Law of 23 July 2016 on the audit profession (Law of 23 July 2016) and with International 
Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as adopted for Luxembourg by the “Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier” (CSSF). Our responsibilities 
under the Law of 23 July 2016 and ISAs as adopted for Luxembourg by the CSSF are further described in the “Responsibilities of the “réviseur 
d’entreprises agréé” for the Audit of the Financial Statements” section of our report. We are also independent of the Fund in accordance with 
the International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants, including International Independence Standards, issued by the International 
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants (IESBA Code) as adopted for Luxembourg by the CSSF together with the ethical requirements that are 
relevant to our audit of the financial statements, and have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities under those ethical requirements. We 
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Otherr matterr 

The financial statements as at December 31, 2024 were prepared for a contractual purpose and not for the purpose of fulfilling the statutory
requirements in Luxembourg.

Otherr information 

The Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the AIFMD required disclosures (not included 
in this reporting), which are expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s report. The other information also comprises
the Annual Report and the Management Report. 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether 
the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to 
be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, 
we are required to report this fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

When we read the AIFMD required disclosures (not included in this reporting), if we conclude that the information therein is materially 
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated, we are 
required to communicate the matter to the Board of Directors. 



The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with IFRSs as 
adopted by the European Union, and for such internal control as the Board of Directors determines is necessary to enable the preparation 
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Fund’s ability to continue as a going 
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of 
Directors either intends to liquidate the Fund or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Responsibilitiess off thee “réviseurr d’entreprisess agréé” forr thee Auditt off thee Financiall Statementss 

The objectives of our audit are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue a report of the “réviseur d’entreprises agréé” that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the Law dated 23 July 
2016 and with ISAs as adopted for Luxembourg by the CSSF will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can 
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with the Law dated 23 July 2016 and with ISAs as adopted for Luxembourg by the CSSF, we 
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform 
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Fund’s internal control.
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures 
made by the Board of Directors.
Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board of Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit 
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Fund’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
report of the “réviseur d’entreprises agréé” to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, 
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our report of the “réviseur 
d’entreprises agréé”. However, future events or conditions may cause the Fund to cease to continue as a going concern.
Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the 
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and 
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

For Deloitte Audit, Cabinet de révision agréé

Anne Ricci, Réviseur d’entreprises agréé
Partner

Mars , 2025 

2
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Financial Statements 
Statement of Financial Position 

 

(a) Class IA launched on 2 January 2024, classes ID, AD and AA launched on 1 February 2024. The launch price for these share classes 
was $25.00 per share. Classes IA EUR and AA EUR launched on 2 December 2024. The launch price of these share classes was €25.00 
per share. 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements. 

As at As at

$000's Notes 31 December 2024 31 December 2023

Assets

Non-current assets

Investments at fair value 3 1,209,568                                    2,034                                              

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 4 760,926                                       9,305                                              

Redemption receivable                                                            4                                                            -   

Total assets                                 1,970,498                                             11,339 

Liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Trade and other payables 5                                                   (336)                                                            -   

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 5                                                (1,992)                                                            -   

Redemption payable                                                         (4)                                                            -   

Subscriptions received in advance 6                                          (759,915)                                              (9,250)

Total liabilities excluding amounts attributable to shareholders                                    (762,247)                                           (9,250)

Amounts attributable to shareholders (IFRS) 1,208,251                                 2,089                                          

Adjustment to IFRS to obtain Net Asset Value 2a                                                 8,056                                                            -   

Net Asset Value attributable to shareholders 1,216,307                                 2,089                                          

Net Asset Value attributable to holders of:

Class ID shares                                            105,655                                                 2,089 

Class IA shares                                           576,649                                                            -   

Class AD shares                                             40,647                                                            -   

Class AA shares                                          492,204                                                            -   

Class IA EUR shares                                                   1,072                                                            -   

Class AA EUR shares                                                        80                                                            -   

                                   1,216,307                                             2,089 

Net Asset Value per share (a) $ $

Class ID 28.55                                               26.11                                                 

Class IA 29.06                                              -                                                   

Class AD 28.33                                               -                                                   

Class AA 28.33                                               -                                                   

Net Asset Value per share (a) € €

Class IA EUR 25.89                                               -                                                   

Class AA EUR 25.88                                               -                                                   
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Statement of Comprehensive Income

 

There are no items of other comprehensive income for the current or prior year. 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements. 

Year to Year to

$000's Notes 31 December 2024 31 December 2023

Revenue

Interest Income                                                   1,497                                                          14 

Expenses (excluding servicing fees)

Other expenses 7                                                (1,287)                                                            -  

Operating profit before revaluation of investments                                                    210                                                        14 

Gain on change in fair value of investment 3                                               72,982                                                         74 

Profit attributable to shareholders before share class specific expenses                                            73,192                                                       88 

Servicing fee on Class A shares 7                                                (1,822)                                                            -  

Profit attributable to shareholders (IFRS)                                            71,370                                                       88 

Adjustments to IFRS to obtain appreciation of Net Asset Value 2a                                                 8,056                                                            -  

Appreciation of Net Asset Value                                          79,426                                                       88 

Attributable to holders of:

Class ID shares                                                  9,287                                                         88 

Class IA shares                                                 37,771                                                            -  

Class AD shares                                                  2,645                                                            -  

Class AA shares                                              29,708                                                            -  
Class IA EUR shares                                                          14                                                            -  
Class AA EUR shares                                                              1                                                            -  

                                         79,426                                                       88 
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Statement of Changes in Amounts Attributable to Shareholders 

 

A reconciliation of the number of shares and share price per share class is included in note 8. 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements. 
  

31 December 2024

$000's Class ID Class IA Class AD Class AA Class IA EUR Class AA EUR

Net Asset Value attributable to shareholders at 31 December 2023                   2,089                                 -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                   -               2,089 

Adjustment to Net Asset Value to obtain IFRS                                  -                                    -                                    -                                    -                                    -                                    -                             -   

Amounts attributable to shareholders at 31 December 2023 (IFRS)                   2,089                                 -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                   -               2,089 

Contributions and redemptions by shareholders

Issue of shares                     96,318                 535,989                   38,002                 463,350                        1,058                               79    1,134,796 

Redemption of shares                               (4)                                  -                                    -                                    -                                    -                                    -                          (4)

Net conversions between share classes                     (2,035)                       2,889                                  -                           (854)                                  -                                    -                             -   

               94,279             538,878               38,002            462,496                     1,058                             79    1,134,792 

Result for financial period

Gain attributable to shareholders before share class specific expenses                        8,587                     33,952                         2,522                      28,124                                   7                                  -              73,192 

Servicing fee on Class A shares                                 -                                   -                            (146)                      (1,676)                                  -                                    -               (1,822)

                   8,587                 33,952                     2,376                26,448                                 7                                 -              71,370 

Amounts attributable to shareholders at 31 December 2024 (IFRS)             104,955             572,830                40,378           488,944                     1,065                             79    1,208,251 

Adjustment to IFRS to obtain Net Asset Value                           700                         3,819                            269                       3,260                                   7                                    1             8,056 

Net Asset Value attributable to shareholders at 31 December 2024              105,655            576,649               40,647            492,204                     1,072                            80    1,216,307 

31 December 2023

$000's Class ID Class IA Class AD Class AA Class IA EUR Class AA EUR

Net Asset Value attributable to shareholders at 31 December 2022                              41                                 -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                   -                          41 

Adjustment to Net Asset Value to obtain IFRS                                  -                                    -                                    -                                    -                                    -                                    -                             -   

Amounts attributable to shareholders at 31 December 2022 (IFRS)                              41                                 -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                   -                          41 

Contributions by shareholders

Issue of shares                        1,960                                  -                                    -                                    -                                    -                                    -                1,960 

                   1,960                                 -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                   -                1,960 

Result for financial period

Gain attributable to shareholders before share class specific expenses                               88                                  -                                    -                                    -                                    -                                    -                         88 

                            88                                 -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                   -                         88 

Amounts attributable to shareholders at 31 December 2023 (IFRS)                   2,089                                 -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                   -               2,089 

Adjustment to IFRS to obtain Net Asset Value                                  -                                    -                                    -                                    -                                    -                                    -                             -   

Net Asset Value attributable to shareholders at 31 December 2023                   2,089                                 -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                   -               2,089 

Share Class

Total.

Share Class

Total.
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Statement of Cash Flows 

 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements. 
  

Year to Year to
$000's 31 December 2024 31 December 2023

Cash flows from operating activities

Interest received 1,497                                                14                                                       

Expenses paid (785)                                                 -                                                   

Net cash from operating activities 712                                                  14                                                     

Cash flows from investing activities

Contributions paid to investments (1,134,552)                                     (1,960)                                             

Net cash used in investing activities (1,134,552)                                (1,960)                                         

Cash flows from financing activities

Cash flows with shareholders 

Proceeds for issue of shares 1,125,546                                       1,960                                               

Proceeds for shares to be issued 759,915                                          9,250                                              

Net cash from financing activities 1,885,461                                11,210                                           

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 751,621                                       9,264                                           

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 9,305                                              41                                                       

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 760,926                                   9,305                                           
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Schedule of Investments as at 31 December 2024 

 

(a) Other liabilities held by direct and indirect subsidiaries not related to investments. 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements. 

  

Cost Fair Value Percentage of

Category of Investments held by indirect subsidiaries $000's $000's Total

Business Services 144,981                              151,949                              12.2%

Consumer 109,638                            112,867                               9.1%

Energy 18,522                                 19,392                                 1.6%

Financial Services 146,192                              151,609                              12.2%

Healthcare 72,232                                 83,743                                6.7%

Industrials 108,963                            123,583                              10.0%

Infrastructure 160,939                            165,109                              13.3%

Media & Entertainment 162,301                              178,216                               14.4%

Secondaries 10,678                                14,514                                  1.2%

Software 133,089                             139,260                             11.2%

Specialty Finance 36,705                               38,369                               3.1%

Technology & Services 53,259                                62,522                                5.0%

Total 1,157,498                     1,241,135                       100%

Other assets and liabilities

BXPE Aggregator SCSp liabilities (12,502)                               (12,502)                               

 Other net working capital (a) (8,484)                                (19,065)                              

Investments at fair value                          1,136,512                      1,209,568 
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Notes to the Financial Statements 

1. Corporate information and principal activities 

Blackstone Private Equity Strategies Fund SICAV (“BXPE Feeder SICAV” or the “Fund”) is an open-ended multi-compartment 
Luxembourg investment company with variable capital (société d’investissement à capital variable) incorporated on 28 June 2022, 
and governed by Part II of the law of 17 December 2010, as amended (the “2010 Law”) and established as a public limited liability 
company (société anonyme) in accordance with the law of 10 August 1915 on commercial companies. BXPE Feeder SICAV is authorized 
and supervised by the Luxembourg supervisory authority, the Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier  (the “CSSF”). Any 
capitalised term not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning ascribed to it in the version of the prospectus of BXPE Feeder 
SICAV applicable at the date of issuance of these financial statements (the “Prospectus”). 

BXPE Feeder SICAV will  continue for an indefinite period of time unless put into liquidation in certain specified circumstances. The 
registered address of BXPE Feeder SICAV is 5, Allée Scheffer, L-2520 Luxembourg and the registration number is B268980. 

Principal activities 

BXPE Feeder SICAV is a vehicle for investment into BXPE. BXPE is a private equity investment program operated through several  
entities and the term “BXPE” or “BXPE Lux” is used to refer to the program as a whole. The primary vehicle for investors to subscribe 
to BXPE is BXPE Feeder SICAV. Investment operations commenced on 2 January 2024.  

BXPE’s investment objective is to deliver medium- to long-term capital appreciation and, to a lesser extent, generate modest current 
income. BXPE seeks to meet its investment objective by investing primarily in privately negotiated, equity-oriented investments, 
leveraging the talent and investment capabilities of Blackstone Inc.’s (“Blackstone” or the “Sponsor”) private equity platform to create 
an attractive portfolio of alternative investments diversified across geographies and sectors. 

Corporate structure 

Blackstone Private Equity Strategies Fund (Master) FCP (“BXPE Master FCP”), a Luxembourg mutual fund (fonds commun de 
placement) governed by Part II of the 2010 Law, is the master fund for BXPE Feeder SICAV. BXPE Master FCP is authorized and 
supervised by the CSSF. 

BXPE Feeder SICAV and BXPE Master FCP are alternative investment funds under the amended law of 12 July 2013 relating to 
Alternative Investment Fund Managers (the “2013 Law”). Blackstone Europe Fund Management S.à r.l. (the “AIFM” or “BEFM”), has 
been appointed as alternative investment fund manager of both funds under the 2013 Law in order to perform the investment 
management (including both portfolio and risk management), oversight, valuation and certain other functions. The registered office 
of the AIFM is 2-4 rue Eugene Ruppert, L-2453 Luxembourg. The AIFM is also the management company of BXPE Master FCP (in this 
capacity the “Management Company”). The AIFM has delegated its portfolio management function to Blackstone Private Investments 
Advisors L.L.C. (the “Investment Manager”). The Investment Manager has discretion to make investments on behalf of BXPE Feeder 
SICAV and BXPE Master FCP. The Investment Manager has delegated the portfolio management function for a portion of BXPE Master 
FCP’s Investments to Blackstone Credit Systematic Strategies L.L.C., Blackstone Liquid Credit Strategies L.L.C. and Blackstone Private 
Credit Strategies L.L.C. 

BXPE Feeder SICAV will invest all or substantially all of its assets into one or more sub-funds of BXPE Master FCP, which wil l invest all  
or substantially all of their assets into BXPE Aggregator SCSp (“BXPE Aggregator”). BXPE Aggregator will make investments alongside 
Blackstone Private Equity Strategies Fund L.P., a Delaware Limited Partnership (together with any feeder fund thereof, “BXPE U.S.”).  
BXPE Lux and BXPE U.S. together form the “BXPE Fund Program”.  

2. Accounting policies 
These financial statements are presented for the year ended 31 December 2024 and were approved for issue on 28 March 2025 
by the Board of Directors. 

Comparative financial information is presented for the year ended 31 December 2023. 

Shareholders can obtain the financial results of BXPE Master FCP for the year on request to the AIFM. 
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BXPE Feeder SICAV has applied the following accounting policies throughout the financial period. 

a) Basis of accounting 
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted 
by the European Union (“IFRS”). In 2024 the following standards and amendments became effective and were applied for 
the first time, with no material impact on the financial statements:  

 Amendments to IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows and IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures: Supplier Finance 
Arrangements  

 Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements: Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current and 
Non-current Liabilities with Covenants 

 Amendments to IFRS 16 Leases: Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback (issued on 22 September 2022). 

The functional and presentational currency is the United States Dollar (U.S. dollar).   

These financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for financial assets and financial liabilities 
held that have been measured at fair value through profit and loss. 

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024 presented herein consist of a Statement of Financial 
Position, a Statement of Comprehensive Income, a Statement of Changes in Amounts Attributable to Shareholders, a 
Statement of Cash Flows and a Schedule of Investments. 

As further described in note 2d, BXPE Feeder SICAV has not issued financial instruments classified as equity. A Statement 
of Changes in Amounts Attributable to Shareholders is presented in lieu of a Statement of Changes in Equity.  

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements and estimates that affect the application of 
the Fund’s accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may 
differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to 
estimates are recognized prospectively. 

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties at the reporting date that have a significant risk of resulting 
in a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year is included in note 
3c and relates to the determination of fair value of financial instruments with significant unobservable inputs. 

Net Asset Value Attributable to Shareholders 
BXPE Feeder SICAV’s net asset value (“NAV” or “Net Asset Value”) is determined monthly in accordance with the valuation 
policy of BXPE, as well as the terms of the Prospectus and the valuation policy of BEFM (collectively the “Valuation Policy”), 
and sets the price at which shares in BXPE Feeder SICAV are subscribed/ redeemed. The Valuation Policy is aligned with 
the recognition and measurement requirements of IFRS. However, Net Asset Value is not a measure used under IFRS and 
the valuations of, and certain adjustments made to, assets and liabilities used in the determination of NAV may differ from 
IFRS. The determination of Net Asset Value takes into account the market impact of specif ic events as they occur, based 
on assumptions and judgments that may or may not prove to be correct, and may also be based on the limited information 
readily available at that time. 

 

Going concern 
These financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. In the opinion of the Directors, there are no 
material  uncertainties in reaching this conclusion and BXPE Feeder SICAV will be able to meet its obligations as they fal l 
due for at least the next 12 months.  

As at As at
$000's 31 December 2024 31 December 2023

Amounts attributable to shareholders (IFRS) 1,208,251                                             2,089                                                      

Organizational and offering expenses adjustment 8,056                                                          -                                                               

Net Asset Value attributable to shareholders 1,216,307                                             2,089                                                      
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b) Consolidation exemption for Investment Entities 
BXPE Feeder SICAV has multiple unrelated investors and holds multiple investments indirectly through BXPE Master FCP 
and BXPE Aggregator. The Directors have determined that BXPE Feeder SICAV meets the definition of an investment 
entity, according to IFRS 10, because the following conditions exist:  

 BXPE Feeder SICAV has obtained funds for the purpose of providing investors with professional investment 
management services; 

 BXPE Feeder SICAV’s business purpose is investing for medium- to long-term capital appreciation and, to a lesser extent, 
generate modest current; and 

 The investments are measured and evaluated on a fair value basis.  

BXPE Feeder SICAV does not have any subsidiaries other than those determined to be controlled subsidiary investments. 
Controlled subsidiary investments are measured at fair value through profit or loss and are not consolidated in accordance 
with IFRS 10. The fair value of controlled subsidiary investments are determined on a consistent basis to all other 
investments measured at fair value through profit or loss, and as described in the fair value estimation notes below. 

BXPE Feeder SICAV’s direct and indirect investments are disclosed in note 3b. 

Additional disclosures on the underlying investments held within the BXPE structure are included in the Schedule of 
Investments and note 3. 

c) Foreign currency translation 

Transactions and balances 
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates 
of the transactions. Foreign currency assets and liabilities are translated into the functional currency using the exchange 
rate prevailing at the Statement of Financial Position date. Foreign exchange gains and losses arising from translation are 
included in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. 

The prevailing exchange rates as at 31 December 2024 are: 

$/€ exchange rate 1.0354. 
$/$CAD exchange rate 0.6952. 

d) Financial instruments 
BXPE Feeder SICAV classifies al l of its investment portfolio as f inancial assets or liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. 

Financial assets 
Other than investments in subsidiaries, all f inancial  assets are measured at amortized cost. Financial assets include cash 
and cash equivalents and redemption receivable. Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand and cash held by the 
Depositary (as defined in note 9) from subscriptions received in advance (see note 2e). At 31 December 2024 and 31 
December 2023, the carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents approximates its fair value. 

Financial liabilities 
Financial liabilities include trade and other payables, redemption payable, subscriptions received in advance and amounts 
attributable to shareholders. 

Other than amounts attributable to shareholders, all f inancial liabilities are initially recognized at fair value less any 
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the liability and are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the 
effective interest rate method. Where payment terms are deferred, the future cash flows are discounted at a market rate 
of interest. At 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023, the carrying amounts of trade and other payables approximate 
their fair value. 

Amounts attributable to shareholders are initially recognized at fair value, which is taken to be the proceeds received for 
the shares issued. Subsequently the carrying amount is adjusted for the allocation of profit or loss attributable to that 
share class, less any distributions or redemptions.  
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Classification of shareholders’ investment into BXPE Feeder SICAV  
Shareholders have the right to request a redemption of their investment in BXPE Feeder SICAV. Payment of redemptions 
is subject to the redemption limits as described in the Prospectus. Shareholders’ investments are classified as financial 
liabilities. 

e) Subscriptions received in advance 
Subscriptions received in advance represent amounts received for subscriptions prior to the trade date when shares are 
issued. The cash from subscriptions is included in cash and cash equivalents along with an offsetting liability until shares 
are issued. 

f) Revenue 
Revenue includes interest income. Interest income is recognized on a time-proportion basis, using the effective interest 
method and includes interest from cash and cash equivalents.  

g) Fees 
The servicing fee and other administrative fees are recognized in the Statement of Comprehensive Income when the 
related services are received. 

h) Tax 
BXPE Feeder SICAV is not subject to any income taxes as defined in IAS 12 Income taxes. Instead, Luxembourg subscription 
tax is charged (see note 7) to BXPE Feeder SICAV and BXPE Master FCP (without duplication) which is computed on net 
assets rather than profit. The subscription tax charge is therefore presented as an operating expense in the Statement of 
Comprehensive Income.  

i) Statement of Cash Flows 
The direct presentation method for the Statement of Cash Flows has been adopted. Distributions to shareholders are 
presented as an operating cash flow as these are funded from operational cash flows from investments.  

3. Investments at Fair Value 

a) Reconciliation of Investments at fair value 
Investments at fair value represents BXPE Feeder SICAV’s investment in BXPE Master FCP. At 31 December 2024, BXPE 
Feeder SICAV owned 100% of the Class F units issued by BXPE Master FCP, representing 100% of all units issued (by value). 
The table below presents the movement of fair value of BXPE Feeder SICAV’s investment in BXPE Master FCP during the 
year ended 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023. 

 

 Year to  Year to 

$000's  31 December 2024  31 December 2023 

Opening fair value (Valuation Policy) 2,034                                                       -                                                             

Exclude adjustments to obtain Net Asset Value -                                                               -                                                               

Opening fair value (IFRS) 2,034                                                       -                                                             

Contributions 1,134,552                                                   1,960                                                           

Gain/(loss) on change in fair value
Gain before Performance Participation Allocation 85,075                                                       74                                                                  

Share of Performance Participation Allocation (12,093)                                                      -                                                               

72,982                                                    74                                                                

Closing fair value (IFRS) 1,209,568                                           2,034                                                       

Adjustments to obtain Net Asset Value 7,637                                                           -                                                               

Closing fair value (Valuation Policy) 1,217,205                                             2,034                                                       
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b) Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss 
In accordance with IFRS 10, BXPE Feeder SICAV meets the criteria of an investment entity and therefore recognizes its 
direct subsidiaries at fair value through profit and loss. The details of BXPE Feeder SICAV’s unconsolidated subsidiaries at 
31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023 are set out in the table below. Unless otherwise stated, the share capital consists 
of units or shares or similar instruments that are directly held by BXPE Feeder SICAV, and the proportion of ownership 
interest held, equals the voting rights held by BXPE Feeder SICAV. The country of incorporation or registration is also their 
principal place of business. 

 

 

Place of business/ 
country of

Direct or Indirect 
Ownership interest held by 

BXPE Feeder SICAV

Direct or Indirect 
Ownership interest held by 

BXPE Feeder SICAV

Name of entity Incorporation 31 December 2024 (%) 31 December 2023 (%) Principal activities

Direct Subsidiary

Blackstone Private Equity Strategies Fund (Master) FCP Luxembourg 100                                                               100                                                               Investment holding

Indirect Subsidiary

BXPE Aggregator SCSp Luxembourg 100                                                               -                                                               Investment holding

BXPE Lux Aggregator (FT) L.P. Delaware 100                                                               -                                                               Investment holding

BXPE Lux Aggregator (NE) L.P. Cayman 100                                                               -                                                               Investment holding

BXPE Lux (E) CYM Feeder L.P. Cayman 100                                                               -                                                               Investment holding

BXPE Lux (Feeder) (CYM) 1 L.P. Cayman 100                                                               -                                                               Investment holding

BXPE Lux (Feeder) A L.P. Delaware 100                                                               -                                                               Investment holding

BXPE Lux (Feeder) 2 L.P. Delaware 100                                                               -                                                               Investment holding

BXPE Lux (Feeder) 3 L.P. Delaware 100                                                               -                                                               Investment holding

BXPE Lux (Feeder) 4 L.P. Delaware 100                                                               -                                                               Investment holding

BXPE Lux (Feeder) 5 L.P. Delaware 100                                                               -                                                               Investment holding

BXPE Lux (Feeder) 6 L.P. Delaware 100                                                               -                                                               Investment holding

BXPE Lux (Feeder) 7 L.P. Delaware 100                                                               -                                                               Investment holding

BXPE Lux (Feeder) 8 L.P. Delaware 100                                                               -                                                               Investment holding

BXPE Lux (Feeder) 9 L.P. Delaware 100                                                               -                                                               Investment holding

BXPE Lux (Feeder) 10 L.P. Delaware 100                                                               -                                                               Investment holding

BXPE Lux (Feeder) 11 L.P. Delaware 100                                                               -                                                               Investment holding

BXPE Lux (Feeder) 12 L.P. Delaware 100                                                               -                                                               Investment holding

BXPE Lux (Feeder) 14 L.P. Delaware 100                                                               -                                                               Investment holding

BXPE Lux (Feeder) 15 L.P. Delaware 100                                                               -                                                               Investment holding

BTOF Matrix II Feeder L.L.C. Delaware 3                                                                      -                                                               Investment holding

BXPE Lux Aggregator (E) L.P. Delaware 100                                                               -                                                               Investment holding

BXPE Lux (L) Holdco GP L.L.C. Delaware 100                                                               -                                                               Investment holding

BXPE Lux (L) Aggregator L.P. Delaware 100                                                               -                                                               Investment holding

BXPE Lux (L) Holdco L.P. Cayman 100                                                               -                                                               Investment holding

BXPE Lux Finance (L) L.P. Cayman 100                                                               -                                                               Investment holding

BXPE Lux Finance 1 L.P. Cayman 100                                                               -                                                               Investment holding

BXPE Lux Lower Fund 1 L.P. Delaware 100                                                               -                                                               Investment holding

BXPE Lux Lower Fund 2 L.P. Delaware 100                                                               -                                                               Investment holding

BXPE Lux Credit Holdco L.P. Delaware 100                                                               -                                                               Investment holding

Project Heat 2 Lux Holdco 1 L.P. Delaware 100                                                               -                                                               Investment holding

Project Heat 2 Lux Holdco 2 L.P. Delaware 100                                                               -                                                               Investment holding

Project Thor Lux Holdco 1 L.P. Delaware 100                                                               -                                                               Investment holding

Project Thor Lux Holdco 2 L.P. Delaware 100                                                               -                                                               Investment holding

Project Rodeo Lux Holdco 1 L.P. Delaware 100                                                               -                                                               Investment holding

Titan Lux Holdco 2 L.P. (fka Jewel Lux Holdco 2 L.P., Project Fusion Lux Holdco 2 L.P.) Delaware 100                                                               -                                                               Investment holding

Project Sky Lux Holdco 1 L.P. Delaware 100                                                               -                                                               Investment holding

Project Akali II Lux Holdco 1 L.P. Delaware 100                                                               -                                                               Investment holding

Starlight Lux Holdco L.P. Delaware 100                                                               -                                                               Investment holding

Altitude Lux Holdco L.P. Delaware 100                                                               -                                                               Investment holding

Eucalyptus III Holdings (CYM) L.P. (fka BXPE Amidala Holdings (CYM) L.P.) Cayman 34                                                                  -                                                               Investment holding

Thoroughbred Purchaser L.P. Delaware 8                                                                     -                                                               Investment holding

Jewel Aggregator, L.P. (fka Fusion Aggregator L.P) Delaware 8                                                                     -                                                               Investment holding

Altitude Purchaser Inc. Canada 32                                                                   -                                                               Investment holding

Nucleus BXPE Topco S.à r.l. Luxembourg 8                                                                     -                                                               Investment holding

Nucleus BXPE Les Ulis Holdco S.à r.l. Luxembourg 8                                                                     -                                                               Investment holding

Nucleus BXPE Fechenheim Holdco S.à r.l. Luxembourg 8                                                                     -                                                               Investment holding

BXPE Nucleus REITco II L.L.C. Delaware 8                                                                     -                                                               Investment holding

BXPE Nucleus REITco I L.L.C. Delaware 8                                                                     -                                                               Investment holding
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c) Fair value 

Valuation oversight 
The AIFM is responsible for the proper and independent valuation of the assets of BXPE Feeder SICAV. The Investment 
Manager provides valuation advice and assists the AIFM in the valuation of the assets of BXPE Feeder SICAV, while the 
AIFM ensures that the valuation function is independent from the Investment Manager and performed in accordance with 
applicable law. 

The AIFM has engaged Kroll, Houlihan Lokey and Lincoln Partners Advisors to serve as independent valuation advisors 
with respect to equity, debt and other securities. Kroll,  Houlihan Lokey and Lincoln Partners Advisors will  review the 
monthly internal valuations prepared by the AIFM. 

Fair value methodology 
The fair value of BXPE Feeder SICAV’s interest in BXPE Master FCP at the year-end is based on the month-end values of 
Investments (including Debt and Other Securities), the addition of the value of any other assets (such as cash on hand), 
and the deduction of any liabilities, including the allocation/accrual of the Management Fee and the Performance 
Participation Allocation, the addition of income, and the deduction of expenses attributable to certain classes, such as 
applicable servicing fees, determined in accordance with the Valuation Policy adopted for BXPE. Methodologies used to 
determine fair value on material components of the valuation that are subject to significant estimation uncertainty are 
described below. For other material components (for example cash and working capital) the fair value approximates the 
IFRS carrying value on a historical cost basis.  

Direct Investments 

Private Equity Direct Investments that are Publicly Traded in Active Markets  

Securities that are publicly traded and for which market quotations are readily available wil l be valued at the closing price 
of such securities in the principal market in which the security trades. If market quotations are not readily available, the 
fair value will be determined in good faith by the AIFM using a widely accepted valuation methodology on the valuation 
date. 

In some cases, securities will include legal and contractual restrictions that limit their purchase or sale for a period of time. 
A discount to publicly traded price may be appropriate in instances where a legal restriction is a characteristic of the 
security. The amount of the discount, if taken, will  be determined based on the time period that must pass before the 
restricted security becomes unrestricted or otherwise available for sale. 

Private Equity Direct Investments that are not Publicly Traded  

Investments for which market prices are not observable include investments in common equity or preferred equity of 
operating companies. The primary methodology for determining the fair values of such investments is generally the 
income approach, whereby fair value is derived based on the present value of cash flows that a business, or security is 
expected to generate in the future. The most widely used methodology under the income approach is the discounted cash 
flow method, which includes significant assumptions about the underlying investment’s projected net earnings or cash 
flows, discount rate, capitalization rate and exit multiple. The AIFM’s secondary methodology, generally used to 
corroborate the results of the income approach, is typically the market approach. The most widely used methodology 
under the market approach relies upon valuations for comparable public companies, transactions or assets, and includes 
making judgments about which companies, transactions or assets are comparable. In certain cases, debt and equity 
securities are valued on the basis of prices from an orderly transaction between market participants provided by reputable 
dealers or pricing services. In determining the value of a particular investment, pricing services may use certain information 
with respect to transactions in such investments, quotations from dealers, pricing matrices and market transactions in 
comparable investments and various relationships between investments. Depending on the facts and circumstances 
associated with the investment, different primary and secondary methodologies may be used including option value, 
contingent claims or scenario analysis, yield analysis, projected cash flow through maturity or expiration, probability 
weighted methods and/or recent round of financing. Generally, material differences between the primary and secondary 
approaches will be investigated and updates may be made to model inputs as deemed necessary. 
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Secondary Investments and Primary Commitments 
Secondary Investments and Primary Commitments are generally valued based on the latest NAV reported or provided by 
the investment fund’s investment advisor or investment manager. If the latest NAV of an investment fund is not available 
at the time BXPE Feeder SICAV is calculating its NAV, the AIFM will update the last available NAV by recognizing any cash 
flow activity for the investment fund during the month. Cash flows since the reference date of the last NAV received by 
an investment fund are recognized by adding the nominal amount of the investment-related capital calls and deducting 
the nominal amount of investment-related distributions from the NAV as reported. 

Debt and Other Securities 
In general, Debt and Other Securities will be valued by the AIFM based on market quotations or at fair value determined 
in accordance with the Valuation Policy and are accounted for on a settlement basis. 

Market quotations may be obtained from third party pricing service providers or, if not available from third party pricing 
service providers, broker-dealers for certain of BXPE Feeder SICAV’s Debt and Other Securities. Securities that are traded 
publicly on an exchange or other public market (stocks, exchange traded derivatives and securities convertible into 
publicly-traded securities, such as warrants) will be valued at the closing price of such securities in the principal market in 
which the security trades. 

If market quotations are not readily available (or are otherwise not reliable for a particular investment), the fair value will  
be determined in good faith by the AIFM. The primary methodology for determining the fair value of such investments is 
generally a yield analysis whereby the AIFM determines if there is adequate collateral value supporting such investments 
and whether the investment’s yield approximates market yield. If the market yield is estimated to approximate the 
investment’s yield, then such investment is valued at its par value. If the market yield is not estimated to approximate the 
investment’s yield, the AIFM will project the expected cash flows of the investment based on its contractual terms and 
discount such cash flows back to the valuation date based on an estimated market yield. Market yield is estimated based 
on a variety of inputs regarding the collateral asset(s) performance and capital market conditions, in each case as 
determined in good faith by the AIFM. The AIFM may determine that certain Investments in Debt and Other Securities will 
be valued using different procedures. 

Liabilities 
With respect to each Class of Shares, the AIFM will include the fair value of such Class’s pro rata portion of BXPE Feeder 
SICAV’s liabilities as part of the Class’s monthly NAV calculation. These liabilities are expected to include the fees payable 
to the Investment Manager, the AIFM, any accrued Performance Participation Allocation, accounts payable, accrued 
operating expenses, any portfolio-level facilities, other borrowings and other liabilities. 

Estimation uncertainty 
Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties at the reporting date that have a significant risk of resulting 
in a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are included below 
and relates to the determination of fair value of financial instruments with significant unobservable inputs. 

BXPE Feeder SICAV is required to classify, for disclosure purposes, fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that 
reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements. The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:  

 Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that BXPE Feeder SICAV 
can access at the measurement date; 

 Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, 
either directly or indirectly; and  

 Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs that have been applied in valuing the respective asset or liability.  

BXPE Feeder SICAV considers observable data to be market data that is readily available, regularly distributed or updated, 
reliable and verifiable, not proprietary, and provided by independent sources that are actively involved in the relevant 
market. 
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Fair value hierarchy analysis 
The table below shows the fair value hierarchy categorization for BXPE Feeder SICAV’s financial instruments carried at fair 
value at 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023. 

 

Investments classified within Level 3 make use of significant unobservable inputs in deriving fair value. Since observable 
prices are not available for these securities, BXPE Feeder SICAV has used valuation techniques in accordance with the 
Valuation Policy to derive the fair value. 

Because of the inherent uncertainties associated with the valuation, the carrying amount of investments at the year end 
may differ significantly from the value that could be realized in an arm’s length transaction. 

The table below shows the fair value hierarchy categorization for the investments held in the underlying subsidiaries at 31 
December 2024. There were no investments held in the underlying subsidiaries at 31 December 2023. 

 

The table below sets out information about valuation techniques, significant unobservable inputs and sensitivity to 
changes in assumptions used at 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023 in measuring financial instruments categorized 
as Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy in BXPE Feeder SICAV. 

 

The following table sets out information about valuation techniques, significant unobservable inputs and sensitivity to 
changes in assumptions used at 31 December 2024 in measuring financial instruments categorized as Level 3 in the fair 
value hierarchy in the underlying subsidiaries. There were no investments held in the underlying subsidiaries at 31 
December 2023. 

$000's Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

31 December 2024

Financial Assets

Investments at fair value -                            -                            1,209,568             1,209,568        

Total -                          -                          1,209,568        1,209,568        

$000's Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

31 December 2023

Financial Assets

Investments at fair value -                            -                            2,034                       2,034                    

Total -                          -                          2,034                    2,034                    

$000's Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

31 December 2024

Financial Assets

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 62,277                     127,709                  1,113,426                 1,303,412          

Derivative financial assets -                            8,379                        -                            8,379                    

Total 62,277                 136,089             1,113,426           1,311,792            

31 December 2024

Cost
$000’s

Fair Value
$000’s

Fair Value 
Hierarchy

Valuation 
Technique

Significant 
Unobservable 

Inputs Range
Weighted 
Average

Sensitivity of fair value to changes in 
significant unobservable inputs: 10% 

increase/ decrease in price will have a fair 
value impact of:

$000’s

Asset Class

Investments at fair value              1,136,512           1,209,568 Level 3 Reported value Net asset value  N/A  N/A  +/- 120,957 

31 December 2023

Cost
$000’s

Fair Value
$000’s

Fair Value 
Hierarchy

Valuation 
Technique

Significant 
Unobservable 

Inputs Range
Weighted 
Average

Sensitivity of fair value to changes in 
significant unobservable inputs: 10% 

increase/ decrease in price will have a fair 
value impact of:

$000’s

Asset Class

Investments at fair value                     1,960                     2,034 Level 3 Reported value Net asset value  N/A  N/A  +/- 203 
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n/a  Not applicable 
WACC Weighted-Average Cost of Capital 

4. Cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash held by the Depositary (as defined in note 9), and includes balances related to subscriptions 
received in advance (see note 6). Restricted cash is received in advance of the subscription date on 1 January 2025. Such cash is held 
in a separate bank account managed by the Depositary and is not available for use until the subscription date. 

 

5. Trade and other payables 

 

6. Subscriptions received in advance 
Subscriptions received in advance remain as unsecured creditors, in respect of amounts paid for shares in advance of the subscription 
date on the first day of each month, until the issuance of the shares has been completed. 

 

31 December 2024

Investment
Level 3 Fair Value

$000’s Valuation Technique Unobservable Inputs Ranges Weighted Average
Impact to Valuation from an 

Increase in Input

Portfolio Companies 726,900                               Discounted Cash Flows WACC 9.3% to 31.4% 17.7% Lower

Exit Multiple 7.6x to 22x 14.2x Higher

195,551                                   Transactional Value n/a n/a n/a n/a

Investments in Affiliated Investee Funds 103,144                                  Third Party Pricing n/a n/a n/a n/a

22,953                                    Discounted Cash Flows n/a n/a n/a n/a

Debt Securities 64,877                                   Discounted Cash Flows WACC 8.4% to 15.3% 14.1% Lower

Total 1,113,426                          

As at As at

$000's 31 December 2024 31 December 2023

Cash at bank and in hand 1,011                                                              55                                                                   

Restricted cash 759,915                                                      9,250                                                          

Total cash and cash equivalents 760,926                                               9,305                                                       

As at As at

$000's 31 December 2024 31 December 2023

Non-current liabilities (falling due > 12 months)

Accruals 336                                                               -                                                               

Current liabilities (falling due <12 months)

Servicing fee payable 1,235                                                             -                                                               

Accruals 757                                                                -                                                               

Total trade and other payables 2,328                                                        -                                                             

As at As at

$000's 31 December 2024 31 December 2023

Balance at the start of the year 9,250                                                       -                                                             

Proceeds for issue of shares 1,885,461                                                  11,210                                                           

Issue of shares (1,134,796)                                                (1,960)                                                         

Balance at the end of the year 759,915                                                 9,250                                                       
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7. Expenses 

The expenses disclosed as a contingent liability as at 31 December 2023 ($7.0 million) have been recognized as expenses in the 
Statement of Comprehensive Income during the year. 

Management Fee and AIFM and Administration Fee 
Details on fees payable to the Investment Manager and the AIFM can be found in note 11. 

Expense Support 
The Investment Manager voluntarily agreed to pay certain expenses on behalf of BXPE such that the total expenses borne by BXPE 
(excluding financing costs, Management Fees, organization and offering expenses, servicing fees, the Performance Participation 
Allocation (as defined in note 11a) and taxes) did not exceed an annualized rate of 0.50% of BXPE’s NAV. Refer to note 11a for more 
information.  

Fees payable to the auditor 
BXPE Feeder SICAV’s auditor is Deloitte Audit S.à r.l.  (“Deloitte”). Deloitte’s fee for the review of these financial statements is $147.7k 
(31 December 2023: $30.4k) and is included in Other expenses in the above table. In addition, Deloitte is the auditor of BXPE Master 
FCP, BXPE Aggregator and certain of its subsidiaries for which Deloitte’s fees total $406.7k (31 December 2023: $30.4k). Deloitte 
provides tax compliance services to BXPE Feeder SICAV. Fees for the year were $8.8k (31 December 2023: nil) and are included in 
Other expenses in the above table. Deloitte also provides tax compliance services to BXPE Master FCP. Fees for the year were $6.5k 
(31 December 2023: nil).  

Servicing fee 
Holders of Class A shares in BXPE Feeder SICAV are subject to a servicing fee, payable to their financial intermediary, of up to 0.85% 
per annum (calculated monthly) on the Net Asset Value, prior to accrual of the servicing fee, distributions and redemptions of such 
shares. Class I shares do not incur a servicing fee. 

Luxembourg subscription tax 
Luxembourg subscription tax for the year ended 31 December 2024 is $20 (31 December 2023: $23).  

8. Net Asset Value attributable to shareholders 
Terms of the share classes set out below are intended to be an aide-mémoire and for compliance with the requirements of IFRS. 
Shareholders should refer to BXPE Feeder SICAV’s Prospectus for the full terms applicable to their shares. 

Classes of Shares 
During the year BXPE Feeder SICAV received subscriptions in six share classes: Class ID, IA, AD, AA, IA EUR and AA EUR. Except as 
otherwise described below, the terms are identical for each class of shares. The complete list of available Share Classes is available at 
the registered office of BXPE Feeder SICAV.  

Class AA, Class IA, Class AA-Italy, Class IA-Italy, Class IA EUR, Class AA EUR and any future Sub-Classes of Accumulation Shares are 
“Accumulation Sub-Class” shares and Class AD, Class ID, Class AD-Italy, Class ID-Italy and any future Sub-Classes of Distribution Shares 
are “Distribution Sub-Class” shares. Shareholders that subscribe for Distribution Sub-Class shares will receive, in cash, any 
distributions that BXPE Feeder SICAV pays in respect of such classes. No distributions are paid on the Accumulation Sub-Class shares, 
the value of distributions that would have otherwise been paid are reflected in the value of those shares. 

Year to Year to

$000's 31 December 2024 31 December 2023

Depositary fees 84                                                                  -                                                               

Other expenses 1,203                                                            -                                                               

Expenses excluding servicing fees 1,287                                                         -                                                             

Servicing fees for Class A shareholders 1,822                                                            -                                                               

Total expenses 3,109                                                        -                                                             
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Class AA, Class AD, Class AA-Italy, Class AD-Italy and Class AA EUR shareholders are charged a servicing fee (see note 7) of up to 0.85% 
per annum payable to their financial intermediary. No servicing fee is payable on Class IA, Class ID, Class IA-Italy, Class ID-Italy and Class 
IA EUR shares. 

Subscriptions 
Subscriptions to purchase shares may be made on an ongoing basis and are effective as of the first calendar day of each month (a 
“Subscription Date”). The offering price will equal the Net Asset Value per share of the applicable share class determined as of the 
last calendar day of the previous month. The Investment Manager may accept, delay acceptance, or reject subscriptions in its sole 
discretion, including choosing to reject or delay acceptance of all subscriptions for a given month. 

Redemptions 
Shareholders may request to have some, or all of their shares redeemed (a “Redemption Request”) as of the closing of the last calendar 
day of each quarter (each a “Redemption Date”) by submitting a notice on or before the last business day of the first month of such 
quarter. Amounts distributed in connection with a redemption will be based upon the Net Asset Value per share of the applicable 
share class as of the last calendar day of the applicable quarter, except for shares that have been held for a period of less than 24 
months in which case an early redemption deduction equal to 5% of the value of the Net Asset Value of the shares being redeemed 
will apply (the “Early Redemption Deduction”). The Early Redemption Deduction will inure indirectly to the benefit of BXPE Aggregator 
and hence indirectly to investors in BXPE. BXPE Feeder SICAV may, from time to time or on a continuous basis, waive the Early 
Redemption Deduction in its discretion, and as described in the Prospectus. 

It is expected that settlements of share redemptions will  generally be made within 35 calendar days of the Redemption Date. No 
distributions are payable on shares subject to a Redemption Request after the Redemption Date. 

The aggregate Net Asset Value of total redemptions across BXPE is generally limited to 3% of aggregate Net Asset Value per calendar 
quarter. In exceptional circumstances and not on a systematic basis, BXPE Feeder SICAV may make exceptions to, modify or suspend, 
in whole or in part, the redemption program if in the Investment Manager’s reasonable judgement it deems such action to be in BXPE’s 
best interest and the best interest of BXPE’s investors, such as when redemptions of shares would place an undue burden on liquidity, 
adversely affect operations, risk having an adverse impact on BXPE that would outweigh the benefit of redemptions of shares or as 
a result of legal or regulatory changes. 

In the event that, pursuant to the limitations above, not all of the shares submitted for redemption during a given quarter are to be 
accepted for redemption by BXPE Feeder SICAV, shares submitted for redemption during such quarter will be redeemed on a pro rata 
basis (measured on an aggregate basis (without duplication) across BXPE if applicable). A Redemption Request that has been agreed 
to be paid, and hence excluded from Net Asset Value, is termed a satisfied redemption. Redemption Requests which are not satisfied 
are described as outstanding redemptions. Outstanding redemptions will not be automatically resubmitted for the next available 
Redemption Date. 

At 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023, BXPE Feeder SICAV had no outstanding redemptions. 

Allocation of profits 
Profits are allocated to shareholders each month based on the relative Net Asset Value of each share class on the first day of the 
month (after subscriptions for that month). Servicing fees are allocated solely to the share class to which the fee relates. 
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Reconciliation of amounts attributable to shareholders 

 

 

 

 

 

 

NAV Number of shares NAV per share

Class ID $000’s 000's $

Net Asset Value at 31 December 2022 41                                               2                                                                     25.32                                      

Issue of shares 1,960                                         78                                                                   

Gain attributable to shareholders before share class specific expenses 88                                                0.79                                           

Net Asset Value at 31 December 2023                                       2,089 80                                                                                                          26.11 

Launch price of $25.00 per share                                       25.00 

Issue of shares 96,318                                      3,700                                                           

Net conversions between share classes (2,035)                                       (80)                                                                

Redemption of shares (4)                                                 -                                                                

Impact of share of IFRS Adjustments 700                                            0.19                                            

Gain attributable to shareholders before share class specific expenses 8,587                                         3.36                                            

Net Asset Value at 31 December 2024 105,655                               3,700                                                       28.55                                      

NAV Number of shares NAV per share

Class IA $000’s 000's $

Net Asset Value at 2 January 2024 25.00                                    

Issue of shares 535,989                                  19,733                                                          

Net conversions between share classes 2,889                                        110                                                                  

Impact of share of IFRS Adjustments 3,819                                          0.19                                            

Gain attributable to shareholders before share class specific expenses 33,952                                      3.87                                            

Net Asset Value at 31 December 2024 576,649                             19,843                                                     29.06                                    

NAV Number of shares NAV per share

Class AD $000’s 000's $

Net Asset Value at 1 February 2024 25.00                                    

Issue of shares 38,002                                    1,435                                                             

Impact of share of IFRS Adjustments 269                                             0.19                                            

Gain attributable to shareholders before share class specific expenses 2,522                                          3.25                                             

Servicing fees (146)                                            (0.10)                                          

Net Asset Value at 31 December 2024 40,647                                1,435                                                          28.33                                      

NAV Number of shares NAV per share

Class AA $000’s 000's $

Net Asset Value at 1 February 2024 25.00                                    

Issue of shares 463,350                                  17,403                                                         

Net conversions between share classes (854)                                           (30)                                                                 

Impact of share of IFRS Adjustments 3,260                                        0.19                                            

Gain attributable to shareholders before share class specific expenses 28,124                                       3.24                                            

Servicing fees (1,676)                                        (0.10)                                          

Net Asset Value at 31 December 2024 492,204                             17,373                                                       28.33                                      

NAV Number of shares NAV per share

Class IA EUR $000’s 000's $

Net Asset Value at 2 December 2024 (launch price of €25.00 per share)(i) 26.44                                     

Issue of shares 1,058                                         40                                                                  

Impact of share of IFRS Adjustments 7                                                    0.18                                            

Gain attributable to shareholders before share class specific expenses 7                                                    0.19                                            

Net Asset Value at 31 December 2024 1,072                                      40                                                                26.81                                      

Net Asset Value at 31 December 2024 (EUR)(ii) €25.89
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(i) $/€ exchange rate 1.0577. 
(ii) $/€ exchange rate 1.0354. 

Capital Management 
BXPE Feeder SICAV’s investment objective is to deliver medium- to long-term capital appreciation and, to a lesser extent, generate 
modest current income. The Board of Directors, with the assistance of the Investment Manager, monitors BXPE Feeder SICAV’s capital 
so as to promote the long-term success of the business and achievement of its investment objectives. Proceeds from the issuance of 
shares (which are classified as liabilities in the Statement of Financial Position) and retained profits are considered as capital. Under 
Luxembourg law, BXPE Feeder SICAV is required to maintain a minimum capital balance of €1.25 million.  

Leverage 
BXPE Feeder SICAV will not incur indebtedness, directly or indirectly, that would cause the Leverage Ratio (as defined in the 
Prospectus) to be in excess of 30%, provided, that no remedial action will be required if the Leverage Limit is exceeded for any reason 
other than the incurrence of an increase in indebtedness (including the exercise of rights attached to an Investment). At 31 December 
2024, BXPE’s Leverage Ratio was 0% (31 December 2023: 0%). 

9. Financial risk management 

Risk management oversight 

The AIFM 
The AIFM is responsible for the risk management function of BXPE Feeder SICAV. The AIFM is authorized as an alternative investment 
fund manager and supervised by the CSSF. 

The AIFM has established and maintains a dedicated risk management function that implements effective risk management policies 
and procedures in order to identify, measure, manage and monitor on an ongoing basis all risks relevant to BXPE Feeder SICAV’s 
investment objective including in particular market, credit, liquidity, counterparty, operational and all other relevant risks.  

The risk management staff within the AIFM supervise the compliance of these policies and procedures in accordance with the 
requirements of applicable circulars or regulation issued by the CSSF or any European authority authorized to issue related regulation 
or technical standards which are applicable to BXPE Feeder SICAV. 

The Depositary 
BXPE Feeder SICAV has appointed CACEIS Bank, Luxembourg branch (the “Depositary”), as depositary bank and paying agent. 

The duties of the Depositary include: the safekeeping of f inancial instruments that can be held in custody and record keeping 
and verification of ownership of the other assets; oversight duties, and cash flow monitoring in accordance with applicable 
Luxembourg law. 

Financial instruments 
This note presents information about BXPE Feeder SICAV’s exposure to risks from its financial instruments other than amounts due 
to its shareholders which are described in note 8. The only directly held financial instrument of BXPE Feeder SICAV is its interest in 
BXPE Master FCP.  

The Directors consider that the objectives of IFRS 7 Financial Instruments:  Disclosures are met by providing disclosures looking 
through to the investments held via BXPE Aggregator as well as directly held financial instruments. 

NAV Number of shares NAV per share

Class AA EUR $000’s 000's $

Net Asset Value at 2 December 2024 (launch price of €25.00 per share)(i) 26.44                                     

Issue of shares 79                                                3                                                                       

Impact of share of IFRS Adjustments 1                                                     0.33                                            

Gain attributable to shareholders before share class specific expenses -                                             0.02                                           

Net Asset Value at 31 December 2024 80                                             3                                                                     26.79                                     

Net Asset Value at 31 December 2024 (EUR)(ii) €25.88
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Market risk 
BXPE Feeder SICAV’s strategy with respect to management of market risk is driven by BXPE Feeder SICAV’s investment objective. 
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market 
prices. The significant market risks that the BXPE Feeder SICAV is exposed to include interest rate risk, currency risk and other price 
risk.  

Market risk embodies the potential for both gains and loss and includes: 

i. Interest rate risk;  

ii. Currency risk; and 

iii. Other price risk. 

i. Interest rate risk 
Interest rate risk primarily results from exposures to the volatility of interest rates. The majority of BXPE Feeder SICAV’s financial 
assets are non-interest bearing. BXPE Feeder SICAV is exposed to fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market interest rates.  

The table below shows the interest classification of the financial assets and liabilities of BXPE Feeder SICAV at 31 December 2024 and 
31 December 2023. 

 

BXPE has a diversified portfolio of liquid assets to meet its liquidity needs. This portfolio includes open-ended money market funds,  
bank loan debt instruments, treasury securities and other debt investments that are exposed to interest rate risks and BXPE may 
utilize a wide variety of derivative instruments to manage such risks. BXPE also has entered into credit facilities that, when drawn-
upon, are subject to floating interest rates that are exposed to interest rate risks. As of 31 December 2024, BXPE has not entered into 
any derivative instruments or other arrangements to hedge an increase in interest rates.  

A 100 basis point increase or decrease in interest rates will cause the fair value of the subsidiaries’ floating rate liquid portfolio assets 
to increase or decrease by $1.9 million (31 December 2023: nil).  

In the event interest rates rise, the assumed cost of capital for portfolio companies would likely increase under the discounted cash 
flow analysis, which could negatively impact such investment’s valuations. These impacts could be substantial depending upon the 
magnitude of the change in interest rates and the length of time such rates remain elevated and may, in certain cases, offset positive 
increases in fair value changes on other investments. Further, increases in interest rates may over time result in lower valuations of 
certain debt investments whose interest rates are not variable and increased interest expense on borrowings outstanding under 
credit facilities that decrease BXPE’s Gain on change in fair value of investment in BXPE Master FCP. 

 

31 December 2024

$000's Non-Interest Fixed Floating Total

Financial Assets

Investments at fair value 1,209,568                            -                                           -                                           1,209,568                       

Cash and cash equivalents -                                           -                                           760,926                               760,926                           

Redemption receivable 4                                                 -                                           -                                           4                                                

Financial Liabilities

Trade and other payables (2,328)                                     -                                           -                                           (2,328)                                  

Redemption payable (4)                                               -                                           -                                           (4)                                              

Subscriptions received in advance (759,915)                                -                                           -                                           (759,915)                           

Total 447,325                            -                                         760,926                           1,208,251                         

31 December 2023

$000's Non-Interest Fixed Floating Total

Financial Assets

Investments at fair value 2,034                                      -                                           -                                           2,034                                   

Cash and cash equivalents -                                           -                                           9,305                                      9,305                                   

Financial Liabilities

Subscriptions received in advance (9,250)                                    -                                           -                                           (9,250)                                 

Total (7,216)                                   -                                         9,305                                   2,089                                  
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ii. Currency risk  

BXPE holds investments that are denominated in non-U.S. dollar currencies that may be affected by movements in the rate of 
exchange between the U.S. dollar and non-U.S. dollar currencies. BXPE may manage exposure to investments in portfolio companies 
in foreign currencies by hedging such risks. 

The exposure of BXPE Feeder SICAV to foreign currency is primarily through its investment in the underlying subsidiaries. The table 
below describes BXPE Feeder SICAV’s underlying gross exposure to foreign currencies as at 31 December 2024. 

 

The table below describes the subsidiaries’ underlying gross exposure to foreign currencies as at 31 December 2024.  

 

The table below summarizes the sensitivity of BXPE Feeder SICAV monetary assets and monetary liabilities to changes in foreign 
exchange movements at 31 December 2024. The analysis is based on the assumptions that the relevant foreign exchange rate 
increased/decreased by the percentage disclosed in the table below, with all other variables held constant. 

 

The following table summarizes the sensitivity of the subsidiaries’ monetary assets and monetary liabilities to changes in foreign 
exchange movements at 31 December 2024. 

31 December 2024

$000's Pound Sterling Euro Swiss Franc
Australian 

Dollar Israeli Shekel Canadian Dollar Japanese Yen
Singapore 

Dollar
Malaysian 

Ringgit
Hong Kong 

Dollar
United States 

Dollar Total

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               1,209,568                1,209,568           

Cash and cash equivalents -                               12,411                           -                               -                               -                               400,862                  -                               -                               -                               -                               347,653                     760,926               

Redemption receivable -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               4                                     4                                    

Long-term other assets -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                             

Short-term other assets -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                             

Due from affiliates -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                             

Long-term trade and other payables -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               (336)                             (336)                           

Short-term trade and other payables -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               (1,925)                          (1,925)                       

Redemption payable -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               (4)                                   (4)                                  

Due to affiliates -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               (67)                                (67)                              

Subscription received in advance -                               (12,404)                      -                               -                               -                               (400,555)                 -                               -                               -                               -                               (346,956)                  (759,915)               

Gross exposure -                             7                                    -                             -                             -                             307                            -                             -                             -                             -                             1,207,937            1,208,251             

Notional amounts of foreign currency forward contracts -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                             

Net exposure -                             7                                    -                             -                             -                             307                            -                             -                             -                             -                             1,207,937            1,208,251             

31 December 2024

$000's Pound Sterling Euro Swiss Franc
Australian 

Dollar Israeli Shekel Canadian Dollar Japanese Yen
Singapore 

Dollar
Malaysian 

Ringgit
Hong Kong 

Dollar
United States 

Dollar Total

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 79,458                       146,603                    -                               57,952                        27,637                        4,200                         44,284                       20,565                       18,820                        2,867                           776,731                      1,179,117                

Cash and cash equivalents 4                                     90                                 1                                       -                               -                               1                                       -                               -                               -                               -                               6,843                          6,939                       

Redemption receivable -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                             

Long-term other assets -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               2,435                           2,435                        

Short-term other assets -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               37,765                        37,765                    

Due from affiliates -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               805                              805                            

Long-term trade and other payables -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               (6,109)                         (6,109)                     

Short-term trade and other payables -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               (11,206)                       (11,206)                   

Redemption payable -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               (4)                                   (4)                                  

Due to affiliates -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               (8,551)                          (8,551)                       

Subscription received in advance -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                             

Gross exposure 79,462                   146,693                1                                     57,952                    27,637                    4,201                        44,284                   20,565                   18,820                    2,867                       798,709               1,201,191               

Notional amounts of foreign currency forward contracts (27,891)                       (77,494)                     -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               113,764                       8,379                       

Net exposure 51,571                       69,199                    1                                     57,952                    27,637                    4,201                        44,284                   20,565                   18,820                    2,867                       912,473                 1,209,570           

31 December 2024
Net exposure

Reasonable 
possible Sensitivity +/- 

$000's shift in rate $000's

Canadian Dollar 307                                           +/-10% 31                                                

Euro 7                                                  +/-10% 1                                                   

Total 314                                          31                                              
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At year end, had the exchange rate of the U.S. dollar increased by 10% against the underlying currencies, with all variables held 
constant, the increase/decrease in the subsidiaries’ net assets is reflected in the table above. A decrease of 10% would have an equal 
but opposite effect.  

In the normal course of business, BXPE may enter into derivative contracts to achieve certain risk management objectives. 

BXPE may enter into derivative instruments to hedge against foreign currency exchange rate risk on a portion or all of its non-U.S. 
dollar denominated investments. These instruments primarily include (a) forward currency contracts and (b) foreign currency swaps. 
BXPE utilizes forward currency contracts and foreign currency swaps, collectively referred to foreign exchange contracts, to 
economically hedge the currency exposure associated with certain foreign-denominated investments. These derivative contracts are 
not designated as hedging instruments for accounting purposes. The use of foreign exchange contracts does not eliminate 
fluctuations in the price of the underlying investments recognized by BXPE. 

As a result of the use of derivative contracts, BXPE is exposed to the risk that counterparties will fail to fulfill their contractual 
obligations. To mitigate such counterparty risk, BXPE enters into contracts with certain major financial institutions, all of which have 
investment grade ratings. Counterparty credit risk is evaluated in determining the fair value of derivative instruments. 

The table below summarizes the aggregate notional amount and fair value of the derivative instruments. The notional amount 
represents the absolute value amount of the foreign exchange contracts. 

 

As at 31 December 2024, BXPE had not designated any derivatives as fair value, cash flow or net investment hedges for accounting 
purposes. 

iii. Other price risk 
BXPE makes Private Equity Investments and, to a lesser extent, investments in Debt and Other Securities, all of which are reported 
at fair value. Determining fair value requires that judgment be applied to the specific facts and circumstances of each portfolio 
investment while employing a consistently applied valuation process for the types of investments made by BXPE. 

If the fair value of BXPE Feeder SICAV’s investments at fair value changed by 1%, the net assets of BXPE Feeder SICAV would increase 
or decrease by $12.1 million (31 December 2023: $20k). In practice, actual trading results may differ from the above sensitivity analysis 
and the difference could be material.  

Credit risk 
Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation or commitment that it has 
entered into with BXPE Feeder SICAV.  

All of BXPE Feeder SICAV’s cash accounts are held with the Depositary which has a credit rating of AA- (31 December 2023: AA-). 

31 December 2024
Net exposure

Reasonable 
possible Sensitivity +/- 

$000's shift in rate $000's

Pound Sterling 51,571                                       +/-10% 5,157                                         

Euro 69,199                                    +/-10% 6,920                                      

Swiss Franc 1                                                   +/-10% -                                           

Australian Dollar 57,952                                    +/-10% 5,795                                       

Israeli Shekel 27,637                                    +/-10% 2,764                                       

Canadian Dollar 4,201                                       +/-10% 420                                          

Japanese Yen 44,284                                   +/-10% 4,428                                      

Singapore Dollar 20,565                                   +/-10% 2,057                                       

Malaysian Ringgit 18,820                                    +/-10% 1,882                                        

Hong Kong Dollar 2,867                                       +/-10% 287                                           

Total 297,097                           29,710                                

As at As at

000's 31 December 2024 31 December 2023

Assets Assets

Notional Fair Value Notional Fair Value

Derivative Instruments

Foreign Currency Contracts (EUR) €78,980 $6,585 -                           -                           

Foreign Currency Contracts (GBP) £23,421 $1,794 -                           -                           



 

    
Blackstone Private Equity Strategies Fund SICAV  Blackstone   |  47 

 

BXPE Feeder SICAV’s maximum exposure to credit risk is set out in the table below. 

  

Liquidity and cash flow risk 
Liquidity risk is the risk that BXPE Feeder SICAV will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with its financial liabilities. 
BXPE Feeder SICAV’s financial liabilities are paid monthly, quarterly or on demand. BXPE Feeder SICAV’s approach to managing 
liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under normal and 
stressed conditions.  

The table below analyses BXPE Feeder SICAV’s financial liabilities by relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at 
the Statement of Financial Position date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts in the table are the contractual undiscounted 
cash flows. 

 

The table below analyses the underlying subsidiaries’ financial  liabilities by relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period 
at the statement of financial position date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts in the table are the contractual undiscounted 
cash flows. 

 

10. Line of Credit Agreement 

On 3 November 2023, BXPE U.S. and BXPE Lux (the “Borrowers”) entered into an amended and restated unsecured, uncommitted 
line of credit agreement (as amended, the “A&R Line of Credit”) with Blackstone Holdings Finance Co. L.L.C. (“Finco”) providing up to 
a maximum amount of $300.0 million.  

BXPE Aggregator and a subsidiary of BXPE U.S. entered into joinders to the A&R Line of Credit on 22 July 2024 and 8 August 2024 
respectively, pursuant to which such entities became Borrowers thereunder, but were subsequently released as Borrowers on 3 
October 2024, in connection with a revolving credit agreement (the “Aggregator Credit Agreement”). The A&R Line of Credit was 

As at As at

$000's 31 December 2024 31 December 2023

Investments at fair value 1,209,568                                         2,034                                                     

Cash and cash equivalents 760,926                                            9,305                                                     

Redemption receivable 4                                                              -                                                          

Total assets 1,970,498                                   11,339                                                 

31 December 2024

$000's

Gross contractual 
cashflows <3 months 3 months to 1 year > 1 year

Liabilities

Trade and other payables 2,328                                        1,927                                        65                                              336                                           

Redemption payable 4                                                    4                                                 -                                           -                                           

Subscriptions received in advance 759,915                                 759,915                                  -                                           -                                           

Total liabilities 762,247                                761,846                            65                                            336                                         

31 December 2023

$000's
Gross contractual 

cashflows
<3 months 3 months to 1 year > 1 year

Liabilities

Trade and other payables -                                             -                                           -                                           -                                           

Subscriptions received in advance 9,250                                       9,250                                      -                                           -                                           

Total liabilities 9,250                                       9,250                                   -                                         -                                         

Cashflows

Cashflows

31 December 2024

$000's

Gross 
contractual 

cashflows
<3 months

3 months to 
1 year

Year
1 to 2

Year 
2 to 3

Year 
3 to 4

Year 
4 to 5

Year
>5

Liabilities

Other payables and accrued expenses 21,780            14,517                  5,786                   -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

Organizational and offering expenses 7,637                382                       1,146                     1,527                     1,527                     1,527                     1,527                     -                       

Derivative financial liabilities 105,385         105,385             -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

Redemption payable 4                            4                             -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

Total liabilities 134,806        120,288        6,932               1,527                 1,527                 1,527                 1,527                 -                     

Cashflows
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renewed for an additional one-year term and now expires on 4 November 2025, subject to additional one year extension options 
requiring Finco approval. 

Under the A&R Line of Credit, the interest rate on the unpaid balance of the principal balance amount of each loan is the then-current 
borrowing rate offered by a third-party lender, or, if no such rate is available, the applicable Secured Overnight Financing Rate (“SOFR”) 
plus 3.00%. Each advance under the A&R Line of Credit is repayable on the earliest of (a) the expiration of the A&R Line of Credit, (b) 
Finco’s demand and (c) the date on which the Investment Manager no longer acts as investment manager to the Borrowers, provided 
that the Borrowers will have 180 days to make such repayment in the cases of clauses (a) and (b) and 45 days to make such repayment 
in the case of clause (c). To the extent the Borrowers have not repaid all  loans and other obligations under the A&R Line of Credit 
after a repayment event has occurred, the Borrowers are obligated to apply the net cash proceeds from its offering and any sale or 
other disposition of assets to the repayment of such loans and other obligations; provided that the Borrowers will  be permitted to (a) 
make distributions to avoid any entity level tax, (b) make payments to fulfill any repurchase requests of the Borrowers pursuant to 
any established unit repurchase plans, (c) use funds to close any investment which the Borrowers committed to prior to receiving a 
demand notice and (d) make distributions to its unitholders (“Unitholders”) or shareholders at per unit or per share levels consistent 
with the immediately preceding fiscal quarter. The A&R Line of Credit also permits voluntary pre-payment of principal and accrued 
interest without any penalty other than customary SOFR breakage costs. The A&R Line of Credit contains customary events of default. 
As is customary in such financings, if an event of default occurs under the A&R Line of Credit, Finco may accelerate the repayment of 
amounts outstanding under the A&R Line of Credit and exercise other remedies subject, in certain instances, to the expiration of an 
applicable cure period. As of 31 December 2024, BXPE Lux had no borrowings or amounts outstanding under the A&R Line of Credit. 

11. Related party transactions 

a) Fees payable to affiliates of Blackstone 

Management Fee 
The Investment Manager is entitled to a Management Fee of 1.25% per annum of BXPE’s Net Asset Value computed, and 
paid, monthly. The applicable Net Asset Value is prior to deducting accruals for the Management Fee, the servicing fee 
(see note 7), the share of the Performance Participation Allocation in BXPE Aggregator, any redemptions for the month, 
and any distributions declared in the month. The Investment Manager may elect to receive the Management Fee in cash, 
Shares, units of BXPE Master FCP, units of BXPE Aggregator and/or shares or units of Parallel Entities or Intermediate 
Entities (where applicable). The Management Fee was waived for the first six months following the date on which BXPE 
Feeder SICAV accepted its first external subscriptions (being 2 January 2024). The Management Fee for the year was $5.3 
million (31 December 2023: nil) of which $3.3 million was outstanding at 31 December 2024 (31 December 2023: nil).  

Performance Participation Allocation 
Blackstone Private Equity Strategies Fund Associates L.P., BXPE Aggregator’s special limited partner or any other entity so 
designated by the general partner of BXPE Aggregator (the “Recipient”) is allocated a performance participation (the 
“Performance Participation Allocation”) by BXPE Aggregator equal to 12.5% of Total Return subject to a 5% annual Hurdle 
Amount and a High Water Mark with 100% Catch-Up. Such allocation will be measured on a calendar year basis, be paid 
quarterly and accrue monthly (subject to pro-rating for partial periods). 

Specifically, the Recipient is allocated a Performance Participation Allocation in an amount equal to:  

 First, if the Total Return for the applicable period exceeds the sum of (i) the Hurdle Amount for that period and (ii) the 
Loss Carryforward Amount (any such excess, “Excess Profits”),  100% of such annual Excess Profits until the total amount 
allocated to the Recipient equals 12.5% of the sum of (x) the Hurdle Amount for that period and (y) any amount allocated 
to the Recipient pursuant to this clause (this is commonly referred to as a “Catch-Up”); and 

 Second, to the extent there are remaining Excess Profits, 12.5% of such remaining Excess Profits 

The Recipient will also be allocated a Performance Participation Allocation with respect to all BXPE Aggregator units that 
are redeemed (or that would have been redeemed if BXPE Aggregator units were redeemed in order to fund the 
redemption of Shares) in connection with redemptions of Shares in an amount calculated as described above with the 
relevant period being the portion of the Reference Period for which such unit was outstanding, and proceeds for any such 
unit redemption will be reduced by the amount of any such Performance Participation Allocation. The Recipient may elect 
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to receive the Performance Participation Allocation in cash, Shares, units of BXPE Master FCP, units of BXPE Aggregator 
and/or shares or units of Parallel Entities or Intermediate Entities (where applicable). If the Recipient elects to receive the 
Performance Participation Allocation in cash, such cash may be paid by BXPE Aggregator, or alternatively and without 
duplication, by BXPE Feeder SICAV, BXPE Master FCP, the Parallel Entities, and/or Intermediate Entities. If the Performance 
Participation Allocation is paid in Shares, units of BXPE Master FCP, units of BXPE Aggregator and/or shares or units of 
Parallel Entities or Intermediate Entities (where applicable), such Shares, shares or units may be redeemed at the 
Recipient’s request and will be subject to the volume limitations in Section V: “Subscriptions, Redemptions and Other 
Transactions—Redemption of Shares” of the Prospectus but not the Early Redemption Deduction. 

For the year ended 31 December 2024, $12.1 million (31 December 2023: nil) of Performance Participation Allocation was 
charged, $6.2 million of which was outstanding at 31 December 2024 (31 December 2023: nil).  

AIFM and Administration Fee 
In consideration for their respective services, the AIFM and the Investment Manager will be entitled to payment of an 
aggregate fee (the “AIFM and Administration Fee”) equal to 0.10% per annum of the NAV of the BEFM Managed Entities, 
payable monthly by BXPE Master FCP, or alternatively and without duplication, by any other BEFM Managed Entity and/or 
BXPE Aggregator. Shareholders in BXPE Feeder SICAV will indirectly bear a portion of the AIFM and Administration Fee 
payable by BXPE Master FCP. The AIFM and Administration Fee will be separate from and additional to the Management 
Fee and any Fund Expenses. For the avoidance of doubt, in the event the AIFM and Administration Fee is paid by any other 
Parallel Entity and/or BXPE Aggregator, such payment shall be made on behalf of BXPE Feeder SICAV and BXPE Master 
FCP in consideration of the services provided by the AIFM and Investment Manager to BXPE Feeder SICAV and BXPE 
Master FCP. 

For the year ended 31 December 2024, BXPE Aggregator accrued AIFM and Administration Fees of $515.3k (31 December 
2023: nil), $261.8k of which was outstanding at 31 December 2024 (31 December 2023: nil).  

Organizational and Offering Expenses 

The Investment Manager has agreed to advance organizational and offering expenses on BXPE’s behalf through to the first 
anniversary of the later date on which BXPE first accepts third-party investors or begins investment operations, the 

“Effective Date”. BXPE will reimburse the Investment Manager for all such advanced expenses ratably over the 60 months 
following the Effective Date. As of 31 December 2024, the Investment Manager and its affiliates have incurred 
Organizational and Offering expenses on BXPE’s behalf in the amount of $8.1 million (31 December 2023: $7.0 million). 

The liability attributable to BXPE Feeder SICAV is $419.6k (31 December 2023: $381.9k).  

Expense Support 
For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Investment Manager voluntarily agreed to pay certain expenses on behalf of 
BXPE such that the total expenses borne by BXPE (excluding f inancing costs, Management Fees, organization and offering 
expenses, servicing fees, the Performance Participation Allocation and taxes) did not exceed an annualized rate of 0.50% 
of BXPE’s NAV.  

For the year ended 31 December 2024, BXPE Aggregator accrued Expense Support of $4.6 million (31 December 2023: nil) 
that will be paid by the Investment Manager. No fees were charged to the Investment Manager for agreeing to bear these 
expenses and the Investment Manager will not be reimbursed by BXPE Aggregator. 

b) Directors’ Fees 
Non-affiliated directors of BXPE Feeder SICAV have earned $81.3k (31 December 2023: $83.0k) for services rendered 
during the year, $4.0k of which is payable at 31 December 2024 (31 December 2023: nil). Directors who are employees of 
Blackstone did not receive any directorship remuneration. 
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c) Investments in BXPE 
The table below shows the Net Asset Value of shares in BXPE held by related parties. All shares were acquired at Net Asset 
Value on the subscription date. 

 
( i) Includes the Investment Manager.  
( i i ) Includes directors of BXPE Feeder SICAV and other key management personnel of BXPE or Blackstone.  

12. Supplementary disclosures on underlying investments  

BXPE Feeder SICAV makes investments in underlying portfolio companies indirectly through intermediate investment entity 
subsidiaries. The application of IFRS 10 requires BXPE Feeder SICAV to fair value those intermediate subsidiaries which reduces the 
transparency of the performance of the underlying portfolio company investments. To improve transparency, BXPE Feeder SICAV has 
included supplementary disclosures which look through the investment entity subsidiaries and consolidate those down to the level 
of the underlying investments. A consolidated Statement of Financial Position and Statement of Comprehensive Income are shown 
below. 

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 

 

Net Asset Value of shares held As at As at
$000's 31 December 2024 31 December 2023

Subsidiaries of Blackstone(i) 13,481                                                  2,089                                                              

Other key management personnel(ii) -                                                       -                                                                   

As at

$000's 31 December 2024

Assets

Non-current assets

Investments at fair value 1,187,514                                        

Other assets 2,435                                               

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 767,864                                        

Other assets 37,765                                            

Due from affiliates 813                                                    

Total assets 1,996,391                                

Liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Trade and other payables (2,014)                                             

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables (23,841)                                           

Due to affiliate (2,366)                                             

Redemption payable (4)                                                       

Subscriptions received in advance (759,915)                                        

Total liabilities excluding amounts attributable to shareholders (788,140)                                  

Amounts attributable to shareholders (IFRS) 1,208,251                                 

Adjustment to IFRS to obtain Net Asset Value 8,056                                              

Net Asset Value attributable to shareholders 1,216,307                                 
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income 

 

13. Subsequent Events 
Subsequent to the year end, BXPE Feeder SICAV had net subscriptions for shares of $1,467.7 million. 

BXPE Feeder SICAV launched three new share classes on 2 January 2025: Class ID CAD, IDD and AA Italy EUR, and one new share class 
on 3 March 2025: Class IF IA. 

Apart from the above, the Directors have evaluated the impact of all subsequent events through to 28 March 2025, which is the date 
that these financial statements were available to be issued and have determined that there were no other subsequent events 
requiring adjustment to or disclosure in the financial statements. 

Year to

$000's 31 December 2024

Revenue

Dividend income                                                  9,385 

Other income                                                  6,102 

Expenses

Other expenses                                             (15,545)

Performance fees                                            (12,093)

Management fees                                              (5,260)

Tax provision                                                (3,314)

Operating profit / (loss) before revaluation of investments                                        (20,725)

Unrealized gain on change in fair value of investment                                              94,445 

Realized gain on investments                                                   (528)

Profit attributable to shareholders before share class specific expenses                                            73,192 

Servicing fee on Class A shares                                                (1,822)

Profit attributable to shareholders (IFRS) 71,370                                         

Adjustment to IFRS to obtain appreciation of Net Asset Value 8,056                                              

Appreciation of Net Asset Value 79,426                                       


